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THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY of MANITOBA 
Monday, March 21 , 1 977 

TIME: 2:30 p.m. 

OPENING PRAYER by Mr. Speaker. 
MR. SPEAKER, Honourable Peter Fox (Kildonan): Before we proceed I should l ike to d irect the 

attention of the honourable members to the gal lery where we have some 20 members of the Rosh 
Pina Senior Group accompanied by Mr. M. Carro l .  This synagogue is located in the constituency of 
the Honourable Member for St . John 's.  

We also have 20 members of an adu lt group from communities across rural Man itoba studying the 
Provincial Legislative System under the leadership of Mr. Don Meadows, who is the course co­
ordinator. 

On behalf of a l l  the honourable members, we welcome you here this afternoon. 
Presenting Petitions; Read ing and Receiving Petitions. 

PRESENTING REPORTS BY STANDING AND SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for St. Vita l .  
MR. D.  J AMES WALDING: Mr. Speaker, I beg to present the fi rst report of the Committee on 

Statutory Regulations and Orders. 
MR. CLERK: The Standing Committee on Statutory Regu lations and Orders begs leave to present 

its fi rst report. 
In accordance with section 66.2(5) of the Leg islative Assembly Act, the Report on Family Law and 

the recommendations of the Man itoba Law Reform Commission as to legislative action thereon was 
referred to the Stand ing Committee on Statutory Regu lations and Orders vide Order in Counci l No. 
1 1 1 2/76 for consideration and report to the Legislative Assembly and to the Lieutenant Governor in 
Counci l .  

Your Committee met on Thursday, November 4, 1 976 for organ ization and on Tuesday, 
November 1 6, 1 976 for d iscussions with the Chairman of the Man itoba Law Reform Commission. 
Your Committee also met on the following dates to receive publ ic representation with respect to 
changes in Fami ly Law: 

Tuesday, November 23, 1 976 - at Winnipeg . 
The Coal ition on Fami ly Law - Alice Steinbart 
The Voice of Women - Terry Gray 
N . D.P. Status of Women Comm ittee - Aleda Turnbu l l  
Mona Brown - Private Citizen of Sperl ing,  Man. 
The Provincial Counci l  of Women of Man itoba - - Jean Carson 
Berenice B. Sisler, Private Citizen. 
Mrs. Terry Sharpe - Portage La Prai rie 
The Man itoba Progressive Conservative Women's Association - - Elizabeth 

Wi l l  cock 
Young Women's Ch ristian Association - Kay Harland 
Frank Peters - Private Citizen 
Winn ipeg Counci l  of Self-Help Groups - Mrs. Frances Roskevich 
Winn ipeg Chapter, Canad ian Congress of Women - Mrs. Jackson 
Brief on behalf of Prof. Cameron Harvey, Faculty of Law, Un iversity of Manitoba -

Laurie Al len 
Man itoba Action Comm ittee on the Status of Women - -Marilyn McGonigal 
Man itoba Association of Registered Nurses - Bonnie McDonnell and June 

Cummings 
Charles Huband - Private Citizen 
Man itoba Teachers' Society - Mrs. Helton 
NDP Status of Women Comm ittee - Maxine Prystupa and Mary Jo Quarrie 
Fort Garry Law Reform Comm ittee - J udy Brenan 
Spi rit of Truth - Ralph Raphael 

Thursday, November 25, 1 976 - at Brandon 
Committee on Status of Women, Women's Centre - Judy Springer 
Reg ion V, National Farmers' Union - Mrs. Eleanor Brown and Mrs. Isabel Proven 
Chi ldren's Aid Society, Western Manitoba - Mrs. E. Cristal l  and Bruce Fraser 
Canadian Federation of University Women - Georg ina Boux 
Mi riam Bowen - Private Citizen 
Luci l le To lain i  - Private Citizen 
Keith Honeyman - Private Citizen 

Thursday, December 2, 1 976 - at Thompson 
Gail Rebbeck - Private Citizen 
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Linda Donahue - Private Citizen 
His Honour, Tom Farrell - Mayor, City of Thompson 
Brian Campbe l l  - Private Citizen 

Thursday, December 9, 1 976 - at Winni peg 
Mount Carmel Cl in ic - Mrs .  Anne Ross 
Cathol ic Women's League - Mrs. Evelyn Wryzykowski and Mrs .  Shi rley Scaletta 
Christ the King Parish Counci l  - Mrs. DeBaets and Mrs. Jean Carson 
Family Services of Winnipeg, I nc. - Miss Lois Emery 
Shi rley Munroe - Private Citizen 
Mrs. Mary Tracey - Private Citizen 
Jake Feakes - Private Citizen 
Roman Burak - Private Citizen 
Murray Smith - Private Citizen 
Janet Berl<owski - Private Citizen 
Winnifred Havelock - Private Citizen 

Tuesday, February 8, 1 977 - at Winn ipeg 
Parent Finders of Winn ipeg - Laurie Joan Mason 

Written briefs were d istributed on behalf of the fol lowing organ izations: 
The Widows and Widowers G roup 
Family Services of Winn ipeg, Inc. 
Fami ly Law Sub-Section, Manitoba Division of the Canad ian Bar Association. 

Of the briefs presented to the Comm ittee, most expressed support for the Law Reform 
Commision's recommendations general ly, but were opposed to the following recommendations 
specifically: 

1 .  Rel ieving parents of responsibi l ity to support and maintai n  an unmanageable 
ch i ld .  

2. F ix ing a common-law spouse with secondary responsib i l ity tor support and 
maintenance of the other spouse's ch i ld ;  the briefs suggested that the province should 
assume th is kind of responsib i l ity. 

3.  "Fault" as a factor in  determin ing spousal maintenance. 
4. "Deferred " sharing of assets; the briefs favoured instantaneous sharing.  
5. Un ilateral contracting out of standard marital reg ime as to pr ior assets, with 

retroactive effect. 
Your Committee met on February 3, 8, 1 5  and 22, 1 977; and March 1 ,  1 977 to consider the 

recommendations of the Man itoba Law Reform Commission. Except as noted below, there was 
general concu rrence among committee members with the Fam ily Law recommendations of the 
Manitoba Law Reform Commission. 

1 .  Parents to be rel ieved of responsib i l ity tor support and maintenance of 
unmanageab le ch i ld .  (Page 1 1 1 ,  para.4 ) 

There was concern that, under the recommendation , the province might wel l  find 
itself saddled with the expense of supporting a chi ld of wealthy parents. 

2. Right of one spouse to information relating to the income, etc., of the other 
spouse. (Page 1 1 4, para. 1 )  

There was concern that in some cases it might wel l be impossible tor a spouse to 
comply with the recommendation without disclosing information as to the personal 
income, etc . ,  of the spouse's business partners. 

3. Obl igation of one spouse to consult with the oh other spouse before any 
expenditure of income. (Page 1 1 4, para.2) 

There was concern that this recommendation m ight be extremely onerous i n  
practice. 

4. Right of each spouse to personal allowances. (Page 1 1 4, para.3).  
Some committee members thought that th is recommendation might have a 

restrictive and generally undesirable effect in many cases, if strictly adhered to. 
5. Fau lt, as a factor in determin ing maintenance. (Page 1 1 6, para.4h) . 
Some committee members were concerned that the "fault" approach being 

advocated in maintenance may create hardship and unnecessary friction in the fam i ly. 
6.  Appl ication of maintenance provisions to common-law un ions. ( Page 116, para. 5) 
Some committee members were concerned that this recommendation might have 

gone too far in  broadening the existing provision on the same subject in the Wives' and 
Chi ldren's Maintenance Act. 

7. Homestead defin ition. (Page 1 2 1 ,  para. 1 )  
The q uestion was raised as to whether this defin ition ought to remain the same, 

particularly in  terms of the amount of land that should be considered appurtenant to a 
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homestead dwel ling. 
8 .  Independent legal advice in completing agreements to contract out of the 

standard marital regime. (Page 1 21, Para 3) 
There was concern about the requirement for two separate lawyers that this 

recommendation appeared to imply. 
9. Deferred sharing of post-n uptial property. (Page 124' para . 1 )  
There was considerable discussion about the feasibi l ity of  extend ing the defin ition 

of marital assets to inc lude property being used by the family un it, such as furn iture, 
automobiles, summer homes, etc. 

10. F i l ing of "contracting-out" agreement in publ ic registry. (Page 1 24, para 3b) 
Comm ittee members felt that many persons would not wish to have particulars of 

their personal domestic affairs available for publ ic scrutiny. 
11 . Shareable estate of a spouse never to be reduced to a negative value by debts 

and l iabilities. (Page 1 25, para.10) 
Some members queried the justification for requiring a spouse to share a l l  with the 

other spouse, but not losses that happen to accumulate to exceed the net value of the 
accumu lated assets. 

12. Accountability of a spouse for assets sq uandered during preced ing six years. 
(Page 1 28, para. 21) 

There was concern about the difficu lty of defin ing "squandered assets " whether it 
was correct in principle to require this kind of accountabi l ity and whether the period of 
accountabi l ity should be six years. 

13. Recovery of excessive gifts within six years. (Page 1 29, para.22) 
There was concern that this recom mendation went beyond the point of a mere 

accounting as between spouses and could actual ly prevent title from passing to the 
recipient of a gift, and that the recipient might therefore not know for years whether or 
not the g ift wou ld have to be returned . 

14. Un i lateral opting out of standard marital reg ime in its retroactive appl ication to 
prior assets. (Page 1 31, para.27c and page 133, para. 31 b) 

There was concern that this recommendation wou ld permit a spouse to determine 
without the consent of the other spouse that certain assets would not be shared, and 
that the recommendation appeared to go contrary to the general equal-sharing 
principle of the standard marital regime. 

1 5. Maximum time al lowable by a court for paying off the amount of a judgement for 
an equalizing payment. (Page 1 25, para. 11 ) 

Instead of the five years recommended by the Commission,  the committee agreed 
that no specific time lim it should be imposed by legislation , and the court should have 
fu l l  d iscretion to determine the time l imit, if any, in each case. 

16. Court's discretion to extend the l imitation period for commencing an action for 
an equal izing payment. (Page 130, para. 25) 

Instead of the unfettered d iscretion recommended by the Comm ission to al low an 
action after expiry of the specified l im itation period, the comm ittee agreed that the court 
should have no discretion to extend the l imitation period beyond six years from the date 
when the right of action arose. 

The Committee recommends that the Attorney-General proceed to submit a b i l l  to the Leg islature 
dealing with the principles discussed i n  Comm ittee, reserving and recognizing the right of each 
member to debate and/or propose amendments to any particular proposal or section in the b i l l .  

FOOTNOTE: The page references g iven refer to  the Manitoba Law Reform Commission, Report 
on Family Law. Parts I and I I .  

MR. WALDING: M r .  Speaker, I beg t o  move, seconded by the Honourable Member for Giml i ,  that 
the report of the Committee be received . 

MOTION presented and carried. 
MR. SPEAKER: Min isterial Statements or Tabling of Reports; Notices of Motion. 

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for Assin iboia. 
MR. STEVE PATRICK introduced Bill (No.36) an Act to amend 
MOTION presented. The Employment Standards Act. 
MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Labour. 
HONOURABLE RUSSELL PAULLEY (Transcona): Mr. Speaker, I wou ld make a request of you 

that you consider the admissability of the b i l l  proposed by the Honourable Member for Assin iboia. I 
note reference was made in the Throne Speech to matters pertaining to overtime. I have received a 
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copy of the proposed measure introduced by the Honourable Member for Ass in iboia, a copy which I 
received from the legislative Counsel ,  Mr .  Speaker, i n  which he draws to my attention in accordance 
with the rules of the House that this b i l l  deserves special attention. So, Sir ,  in a l l  d ue respect to the 
desires of my honourable friend and in accordance with, as I understand the rules . of the House, the 
rules of Beauchesne and others, I respectfu l ly suggest that you take under advisement the 
admissabi l ity of this b i l l .  

MR. SPEAKER: The Chair finds itself in  the position of  not having had either b i l l  that the M inister 
proposes or the one that the Honourable Member for Assin iboia proposes before it. It  is only for 
introduction at the present t ime so neither one is printed and I can 't make a decision on something 
that hasn't been printed . The Honourable Min ister of Labour. 

MR. PAULLEY: Excuse me, Mr. Speaker, there seems to be a . . .  maybe it was because of the 
word ing that I used . There are not two b i l ls but just one b i l l  proposed by the Honourable Member for 
Assiniboia, and wh ile I can appreciate the fact that you may not have a copy of the said b i l l ,  I d idn't 
want proceed ings to occur to the degree that I could not draw to your attention the point that I d id .  
more than p leased to forward the copy of the bi l l  that I received from the legislative counsel but of 
course bi l ls are not normally printed and distributed except after due course. But I was suggesting to 
you,  in a l l  due respect, that consideration be given to reference to the employment standards which 
is contained in The Throne Speech notwithstanding the fact that I may have a copy of the proposed 
legislation . 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for Assin iboia on the same point of order. 
MR. PATRICK: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I wish to speak on the same point of order. I hope that the 

Min ister understands that there may be many various factors concern ing overtime. The second point 
that he raised that the legislative counsel said that the bil l  needs special attention, I believe that is 
placed on almost every private member's b i l l  by the legislative counsel .  

MR. SPEAKER: I shal l take the matter under advisement unti l  I get further information on it. 
ORAL QUESTIONS 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for Rock Lake. 
MR. HENRY J .  EINARSON: Mr. Speaker, I d i rect this q uestion 0487 02 to the M in ister of 

Agricu lture, and in view of the overwhelming defeat of the recent Man itoba Beef Marketing Board 
with the powers designated . . . 

MR. SPEAKER: Question, please. 
MR. EINARSON: . . .  I wonder if the M inister can ind icate whether he is now prepared to al low the 

beef producers the opportunity to proceed with some of the improvements that they have been 
asking for. That is main ly in the marketplace. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Agricu lture. 
HONOURABLE SAMUEL USKIW(Lac du Bonnet): Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, that is a very vague 

question . Some of the points that were made by some of the groups in the debate require authority of 
The Natural Products Marketing Act wh ich they in fact voted against. So I'm not just sure what it is 
they want to do. 

MR. EINARSON: Mr. Speaker, then I th ink I m ust put it plain to the Minister and ask h im. Now that 
the producers of beef have made their  decision through a referendum,  is the Minister now going to 
stick to the slogan that he used earl ier in the campaign that it's either a marketing board or nothing at 
al l? Is that the understand ing that I get from the Min ister's answer? 

MR. USKIW: Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, I would suggest to the Member for Rock Lake that he should not 
suggest fal lacious comments to this House, or make fal lacious comment in  this House. 

MR. EINARSON: Wel l  then , Mr. Speaker, I should l i ke to ask the Minister, then, in  view of the fact 
the beef producers of th is province would l i ke to know where their next step is as to what d irection 
they are going to go, I'm merely asking the Min ister, M r. Speaker, is the M in ister prepared to co­
operate with the beef producers of this province to assist them , if it is necessary, with a marketing 
plan through the Marketing Board, to hel p them solve some of the problems that they sti l l  have. 

MR. USKIW: Well again,  Mr. Speaker, the Member for Rock Lake should not want to presume that 
he is going to carry the message forward because I don't know what it is he is suggesting to me. 
People have an open door to my office and if they have some suggestions to make they are welcome 
to make them . 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Lakeside. 
MR. HARRY J. ENNS: Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, I d irect a question to the Honourable the Fi rst M in ister. I 

note with concern his d isabi l ity and I trust that it didn't come about as a result of any serious 
discussion he had with his Min ister of Agriculture over the week-end. But my question to the 
Minister, Sir, is, is he considering making any changes in his Min istry as a result  of the vote last 
Friday. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Fi rst M in ister. 
HONOURABLE EDWARD SCHREYER, Premier(Rossmere): Mr. Speaker, I can assure my 
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honourable friend that whatever disabil ity I may have today is on ly of short term duration, that it has 
nothing to do with the beef marketing vote. Indeed , over a month ago, I indicated that whatever the 
result of the vote that the government would accept it with good grace and that matters wi l l  flow from 
there. There is every opportun ity for those that are actively involved in beef production to meet and to 
bring forward alternative proposals. Where the government will find it problematic is a proposal that 
wou ld have to do with some compulsory measure, of whatever degree of profundity, without any kind 
of soliciting of opin ion of the producers themselves. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honou rable Mem ber for River Heights. 
MR. SIDNEY SPIVAK: Mr. Speaker, my question wi l l  be to either the First Min ister or the Min ister 

of Finance . The consumer price index for the regions was just publ ished and I wonder if the 
government is in a position to explain why the apparent rise in the cost of l iving for the Winnipeg area. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourab le Min ister of Finance. 
HONOURABLE SAUL A. MILLER (Seven Oaks): Mr. Speaker, these f igures are pub l ished 

regu larly and as the member knows, it does ind icate a rise in the consumer price index for Winnipeg . 
On the other hand,  it does indicate an even greater rise in some cities to the west of us. What must be 
remembered is the base from which this a l l  starts. What we have here is the rise from one period to the 
next, and there is a rise of 7 .6 percent, I think it is, in the February, 1 977 over February, 1 976. But it is 
not with other cities in  Western Canada and it s imply proves again that we are not an island ourselves 
and that as inflation affects Canada, so it shal l also affect Winn ipeg . 

MR. SPIVAK: I wonder if the M inister in reviewing the figures has not considered that there is a 
danger signal by comparing the rise for this past month with the previous month for the cost of food, 
housing and al l items. The rise is su bstantial ly h igher than other areas. 

MR. MILLER: Mr. Speaker, it simply indicates it hit us a little later than it did other areas. I might 
point out that insofar as Winnipeg and other cities across the country, they are comparable. It's a 
question of taking a particu lar poi nt in time and comparing it with another point i n  time. Certain ly, 
these costs are affecting us, I wou ld be surprised if they wou ld not be affecting us. 

MR. SPIVAK: I wonder if the Finance Min ister is in a position to ind icate why Manitoba has led in 
the increased cost of housing in the country both last month and in th is month. 

MR. MILLER: Mr. Speaker, Winn ipeg housing has for many years been below the national 
average. A l l  that is happening is the adjustment and recognition that in  fact it's catching up to those 
two. 

MR. SPIVAK: To the Finance Min ister . I wonder if he can ind icate whether his department has 
undertaken any study to specifical ly support the proposition he just put forward , that increased cost 
is for the reasons he suggested. Does he have any study that wou ld indicate that? 

MR. MILLER: Mr. Speaker, I have no specific study in front of me but I do know that over the years, 
Winnipeg has been sometimes loser and sometimes h igher than other cities j ust as Manitoba has 
sometimes been lower and sometimes higher than other provinces in the development and as costs 
move forward . It is on the average, in l i ne with what has happened over cities providing you don't take 
one camera or snapshot in time but look at the overal l figures from over a period of years. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honou rable Member for Assin iboia. 
MR. PATRICK: Thank you, Mr .  Speaker. I have a question for the Honourable Min ister of Northern 

Affairs. Can the Minister indicate to the House if the thi rty-two trucks with cargo that started over the 
weekend to Al lan Lake were able to complete their trip through the winter roads. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister for Northern Affairs. 
HONOURABLE RONALD McBRYDE (The Pas): Mr. Speaker, since the member failed to g ive 

notice, I ' l l  take the question as notice. 
MR. PATRICK: Supplementary, Mr. Speaker, I understand that al l if not al l of them, most of them 

turned back from Hoe Lake, I bel ieve, Hoe River. Can the Minister indicate wi l l  the government be 
paying for the cost of the trucks not getting through or what is the arrangement. 

MR. MCBRYDE: Mr. Speaker, the road of which the member talks was open and open for a 
su itable amount of time for the fri to be moved in . The road was official ly closed, some truckers 
decided to use the road at their own risk and they are al lowed to do that. They use it at their own risk. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for Rie l .  
HONOURABLE DONALD W. CRAIK (Riel): Mr.  Speaker, I have a q uestion for the Min ister of 

Municipal Affairs. It is in relation to the activities of the assessment d ivision of his department. 
Inasmuch as the City of Winnipeg is assessing houses extra that include in their construction solar 
energy facilities, I wonder if he can advise the House whether that is a practice of the Department of 
Municipal Affairs.  

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Mun icipal Affairs. 
HONOURABLE BILLIE URUSKI (St. George): Mr. Speaker, the member no doubt is aware that 

the City of Winn ipeg has its own assessment department. The Provincial Assessment Branch fo l lows 
the determination in the Act and I wi l l ,  with respect to the specifics that he is talking about' take that 
under notice to find out if they have had any experience at al l  out of the City of Winnipeg. 
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MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Riel .  
MR. CRAIK: Mr.  Speaker, on the same topic, I would l ike to d i rect a question to the M in ister of 

Finance and ask h im if consideration has been given again in energy conservation measures to 
removing the sales tax this year from insulat ing goods. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable M in ister. 
MR. MILLER: Mr. Speaker, as the Honourable Member for R iel  knows, the government is always 

wi l l ing and ready to consider almost anythi ng for the benefit of Man itoba. 
MR. CRAIK: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if the M inister would indicate, s ince the government voted 

against such a Private Member's Resolution last year . . .  
MR. SPEAKER: Order please. The question now is argumentative. Wou ld the honourable member 

rephrase. 
MR. CRAIK: M r. Speaker, I want to know specifical ly if the government is giving any consideration 

in the way of financial measures to energy conservation including the removal of sales tax on 
insulation . 

MR. MILLER: Wel l ,  the honourable member, Mr. Speaker, shou ld know that it would be improper 
for me to advise the House at this point and it would be improper for h im to even suggest that I pre­
empt the Budget Speech .  

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Ste. Rose. 
MR. A. R. (PETE) ADAM: Thank you very much,  Mr. Speaker. The Member for Rock Lake was 

asking the Min ister of Agricu lture if he was goi ng to . . .  
MR. SPEAKER: Question,  p lease. 
MR. ADAM: I would l i ke to ask the M in ister of Agricu lture if it is correct that he has advanced $34 

mi l l ion in the past two years under the Beef Assurance Program to beef producers of this province. 
MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Agriculture. 
MR. USKIW: Wel l ,  Mr .  Speaker, that is correct, although I don't know what it has to do with the 

question that was put to me by the Mem ber for Rock Lake. 
MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Fort Rouge. 
MR. AXWORTHY: Mr. Speaker, I have a q uestion for the Min ister for Urban Affai rs. I was 

wondering if he cou ld ind icate to the House when we might expect the legislation amending the City 
of Winnipeg Act and whether it wi l l  be done with in the next week or two. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable M in ister of Urban Affai rs. 
MR. MILLER: Mr. Speaker, soon, and that might translate to a couple of weeks, and it m ight be 

longer. 
MR. AXWORTHY: M r. Speaker, considering the indefiniteness of the Min ister's answer, cou ld he 

ind icate whether he has had any discussions with City of Winnipeg officials to determine what kind of 
time they wou ld need in order to prepare for any reorganization or set-up change in the 
administrative or boundaries of the City of Winn ipeg. 

MR. MILLER: No, Mr. Speaker, there are no specific d iscussions taking place but I th ink the 
Department of Urban Affairs is aware of the techn ical matters that wou ld have to be taken into 
account. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Supplementary, Mr. Speaker. Cou ld the Min ister indicate whether he'd be 
prepared to release or provide those techn ical papers and assessments for members of the House so 
that they cou ld have them available for when the debate occurs. 

MR. MILLER: No, Mr. Speaker, the techn ical matters I was referring to are the matters that the 
member brought up. The question of the city machinery being able to respond,  those really are within 
the city's purview. They know what they are and I'm suggesting that the department knows them as 
wel l .  

MR. SPEAKER: T h e  Honourable Member for Wolseley: 
MR. ROBERT G. WILSON: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. To the M inister in  charge of the Civil Service, 

wou ld the M in ister confirm that Mr. Wi lson Parasiuk  is a government employee and a suggested 
candidate for the Transcona riding? 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Mun icipal Affairs. 
HONOURABLE BILLIE URUSKI: Mr.  Speaker, I believe that he may very wel l be, but he doesn't 

work for my department. 
MR. WILSON: A supplementary then. Wou ld the Min ister confirm that Mr. Parasiuk was arrested 

or detained by pol ice as an election stunt at the G riffin Steel l i ne in the Transcona riding 
MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Fi rst M in ister. 
MR. SCHREYER: Mr. Speaker, that kind of innuendo is no more fitting here than to suggest that 

someone got h imself dressed down by a Queen's Bench judge as an election stunt. 
MR� SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for River Heights. 
MR. SPIVAK: M r. Speaker, my question is to the Fi rst Min ister and it relates to statements made by 

the Cultural Deve lopment Min ister of Quebec in which he indicated that the Prime M inister should be 
lecturing Man itoba for its treatment of the French Canad ian m inority. I wonder if the F irst Min ister 
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has made a response or intends to make a response on behalf of the government i n  connection with 
this statement. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Fi rst Min ister. 
MR. SCHREYER: Natural ly, Mr. Speaker, we wou ld  want to ascertain if anyth ing the lines that my 

honourable friend is suggesting was in fact said if it was said, we certain ly have a ready response. 
MR. SPIVAK: Mr.  Speaker, on another question , but partial ly related . I wonder if the Fi rst Min ister 

can indicate whether there have been any studies undertaken by the government with respect to the 
various options that the Prime Min ister of Quebec and others who are a part of the Min istry have 
suggested with respect to opting out of Canada, whether there have been any undertakings by the 
government with respect to the economic impacts for Man itoba, for western Canada, whether in  
effect any . . . .  

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. The question is on a hypothetical area. It is out of order. 
MR. SCHREYER: Let's not choose to proceed on fatalistic stud ies. 
MR. SPEAKER: The Honou rable Member for Radisson .  Order please. 
MR. HARRY SHAFRANKSY: Mr. Speaker, may I have leave to revert to the routine proceedings on 

presenting petitions? 
MR. SPEAKER: Does the honourable member have leave? (Agreed) The Honourable Member for 

Radisson. 
PRESENTING PETITIONS 

MR. SHAFRANKSY: Mr. Speaker, I beg to present the petition of praying for the passing of An Act 
to amend an Act to incorporate 

MR. SPEAKER. It will be entered u nder Presenting Petitions. Questions. 

ORAL QUESTIONS 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for Fort Garry. 
MR. L. R. SHERMAN: Mr. Speaker, my question is to the Honourable the Min ister reporting for the 

Civil Service and I would just ask him ,  Sir ,  whether he has any information now pertain ing to a 
question I asked him some days ago with respect to identities of civi l  servants who had been arrested 
on the picket line at G riffin .  

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Municipal Affairs. 
MR. URUSKI: Mr. Speaker, as the honourable member wel l knows I ind icated to h im some days 

after the question ,  that those names that he asked me to inquire about were not avai lable to me, that 
when those persons appeared in cou rt on the court docket they would be released . I indicated as well  
to the honourable member that the role of the in dealing with staff is the role of an appellant body and 
each department and each Min ister in his own department wou ld have the role of determining 
whether employees were not at work when they should have been and any d iscipl inary action would 
be undertaken by the relevant department and their managers. 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Attorney-General .  
HON. HOWARD PAWLEY (Selkirk): M r. Speaker, I wonder if I could with f i le a retu rn to an Order 

of the House 
MR. SPEAKER: Does the Minister have Leave? 

ADJOURNED DEBATES - SECOND READING 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable M in ister of Labour. 
MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if you would call the adjourned debates on second read ing 

in the order in  which they appear. 
MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. 

BILL (NO. 2) - AN ACT TO AMEND THE SECURITIES ACT 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Wolseley. 
MR. WILSON: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Upon examining the b i l l  and the proposed Act to amend 

The Securities Act, it appears to be main ly a change in brought on by the i ntroduction of The 
Companies Act are some things in it that are of interest I would th ink that it does properly exempt the 
credit un ions as rea l ly there was sort of a dupl ication of service and certain ly in  a year when we are 
trying to save money, we want to uti l ize our staff since the credit un ions were al ready being 
supervised by another department, it seemed fitting that they should be exempted. defin itions it 
really and describes the Manitoba Securities Board now responsib i l ity for the Real Estate B rokers 
Act and the Mortgage Brokers and Mortgage Dealers Act. And rightfu l ly,  it clearly defines some of 
the big powers of course the former Min ister, I called h im the Min ister of Power, I would have hated to 
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have some of these powers under h im ,  but I th ink the Min ister now responsible for this department 
has rightfully gone along with these changes to clearly define when it comes to freezing trust 
accounts and preventing people from operat ing.  I th ink these are rightfu l ly watered down. 

Many of the proposals in  the bi l l  are of sort of a cosmetic nature and I would think that we cou ld 
possibly deal with it more thoroug h ly in  Committee, getting into the b i l l  One of the clear th ings of 
course means that a l l  these propsectuses that are put out through Man itoba-based companies have 
to be cleared through Man itoba even though the m in ing shares of the XYZ min ing company m ight be 
flogged in the Vancouver Stock Exchange where a lot of these penny stocks are floated the Calgary, 
or for that matter the Toronto Stock Exchange. It  seems we have got to g ive Man itoba a b it of a l i ft in 
the investment field because Vancouver certainly has a bad name for floating penny stocks, 
operations, and over-the-counter that out a very small  number in the past, but certainly one or two 
have turned out to be Man itoba compan ies I th ink our image needs protection and I welcome this 
particular change in the Act. 

So without going into too much further detai l ,  I do th ink the fact that the mutual funds have 
dropped the responsibi l ity of auditing and now the govern ment is going to be sending out a 
questionnaire for some means of control has been an original statement by the Min ister that it 
wou ldn't involve any extra staff but I am wondering,  if these people answered the questionnaire 
wrong if h is department would be able to handle the workload , or wou ld they be h i ring auditors from 
outside firms? In other words, is there an added expense? Does he envision an added expense? And 
if not, he cou ld possibly clear that up .  

clarification it seems there may have been a possibi l ity of  course I don't bel ieve a case was ever 
tested, but this Act does away with what could have been a field day if it became public knowledge for 
the legal profession because it seems that m any of these term deposits that someone put in say, two 
years at percent, if he sudden got married or something and decided he wanted to take out the 
money, then he wou ld be penal ized and be g iven a pale fig u re of something l i ke say, 5.5 or 6.5 
percent. wou ld seem that there might be a legal argument that the credit un ions could have in fact 
been in a bit of trouble with the federal people pertaining to their responsib i l ities under this section. 
So I think to keep the credit un ions out of the courts and to al low our courts to do other functions 
more meaningfu l ,  I wou ld think this is a good point as wel l .  So I wil l be talking to the Min ister about 
this bi l l  in more detai l  in  Committee. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Fort Rouge. 
MR. AXWORTHY: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Member for Assin iboia, that 

debate be adjourned . 
MOTION presented and carried. 
MR. SPEAKER: Bi l l  (No. 3) ,  the Honourable Member for Rock Lake. (Stands). B i l l  (No. 4) , the 

Honourable Member for Portage la Prairie. (Stands) . B i l l  (No. 5) , the Honourable Member for Fort 
Rouge. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Thank you ,  Mr. Speaker. Last week we had the opportun ity to comment upon 
Bil l  the bil l  introduced by the Min ister of Public Works g iven to land acqu isition. As we pointed out to 
the House at that time, it was both a serious commission of errors in  terms of the amendments that 
were being made, and perhaps more seriously, an omission of errors because of the lack of any 
attempt in that b i l l  to deal with the question of how to control the prices of publ ic purchases of land . 
And it does go to the heart, Mr. Speaker, of one of the central issues that we debate in this Legislature 
that is the question of the management of government affairs. 

I think Bi l l  Mr. Speaker, has the same sequence of errors in  it, both omission and comm ission , 
perhaps going to a much more fundamentally important series of values, even beyond those of the 
question of management because there is no more serious act of any government than the act of 
expropriation ,  the taking of a piece of personal private property from an ind ividual by the State for its 
own purposes. And we al l  recognize that the common law has acknowledged the right of government 
to do that, that where it is considered fair  and necessary, the government has the right to impose its 
own wi l l  and say, "I w i l l  take your piece of property, provided I g ive you fair  compensation . "  But, Mr. 
Speaker, that particular act of government is one that must be done with the g reatest degree of 
sensitivity and responsiveness and responsi bi l ity to the person that is having their  property taken 
from them, that there can be no greater i ntrusion upon the rights of an ind ividual than that right of 
taking away their stake in society, what they consider to be their own , so when government does that 
act, it must do so with great care and consideration. 

Mr. Speaker, it must do so even more critical ly when you consider that oftentimes those who are 
subject to expropriation are those least able to defend themselves. They are those who are 
oftentimes - because expropriation takes place in downtown areas, inner city areas, in rural areas, 
- the people are not as adequately sophisticated with the law, with their  rights, to ensure that they 
get the proper protection . This is compounded even more seriously when there are d ifficulties of 
language and sometimes with culture. 

I could th ink,  M r. Speaker, to the problems that we experienced in this city last year when the 
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Provincial Government itself was expropriat ing a number of properties in the central part of 
Winnipeg , many of those people who were being expropriated were those who had recently arrived in  
this country, who came from countries who had very d ifferent governmental systems from ours, were 
oftentimes int imidated by the authority of the state they're com ing into , oftentimes handicapped by 
language difficu lties and as a result, were confused and oftentimes h igh ly upset and anxious about 
that particular procedure .  So the Act of Expropriation is something that cannot be treated l ightly and 
in fact requires the g reatest degree of sensitivity and the greatest deg ree of careful  consideration that 
government app l ies. I can th ink  in some ways of perhaps o n ly in the areas l ike the Act of Adoption or 
other areas where deal ing with such personal matters, does expropriation have that same qual ity of 
requ i rement. 

And yet, Mr.  Speaker, when we come to the amendments being proposed in  this b i l l ,  they in fact 
are steps away from those very criteria. Rather than expanding and enhancing the abi l ity of this 
Provincial Government to deal with the problem of expropriation in the most l i beral-minded, open, 
accessible way, they in  fact are a series of amendments wh ich beg in  to restrict the law and beg in  to 
pu l l  in the requ i rements of government to obey basic tentative natural justice which is fai r  hearing be 
g iven to a l l .  

Mr.  Speaker, again ,  it comes as some surprise to me,  l i ke a great deal of  surprise to me,  that other 
members of this House, of groups other than my own, who expressed with great frequency and 
vehemence their own commitment to this issue aga in  wou ld al low a b i l l  as important as this to pass by 
without comment, to pass by saying they see noth ing wrong with it. 

Again, Mr. Speaker, I can on ly stand on serious q uestion ing about the degree of dedication that is 
brought to that kind of commitment if, i n  fact, as important a series of changes as the Expropriation 
Act are simply a l lowed to pass by with very l i ttle attention or very l ittle serious address. 

A over yet. MEMBER: Nothing's passed by yet. It's not 
MR. AXWORTHY: Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, when someone is prepared to say they support something in  

principle, I take them at their word . Support i n  principle means that they are in  basic agreement to  the 
pri nciples of this b i l l .  We, Mr. Speaker, are not in agreement w ith the principles of these amendments; 
i n  fact, we are dead ly opposed to the princip les of these amendments and we wi l l  end up asking the 
Min ister to withdraw this b i l l  because it is such a bad b i l l  that it has no sense to it .  Therefore, when the 
Member for Lakeside says, "It's not over yet," I wou ld say that once someone in  this House speaking 
on behalf of his g roup is prepared to say, "We agree i n  pr inciple," then,  Mr. Speaker, I th ink that we 
have no other option but to take them at their word. 

A MEMBER: Leave that to the Conservatives. 
MR. SPEAKER: Order please. Order please. 
MR. AXWORTHV: The only system would be is consider ing the source of those comments and 

considering the past record of dedication to pri nciple, then maybe there is no reason to takethem at 
thei r  word. 

A MEMBER: Okay. We c leared that up.  
MR. AXWORTHV: Okay, we cleared that issue up and now we've got past that thing,  let's go to the 

b i l l  itself. What in the basic thrust of the b i l l  does it state? 
The first th ing,  Mr. Speaker, what it real ly does is requ i re in a fundamental way that one of the 

basic requ i rements of expropriation is to assure that all interested parties to that expropriation are 
i nformed that it's about to take place and informed of their r ights with in  that proceed ing .  

Now, Mr. Speaker, i f  you look at th is  b i l l  i t8  i n  fact8 withdraws the r ight of  notification to certain  
critical groups who may be affected . Tenants, as  one prime example. There is a very basic standard in  
our  law wh ich  says that a l l  those who have an interest in  the property must be notified. That is 
withdrawn in  this present sub-amendment and yet that is often i nterpreted as we interpret it in  the 
Landlords and Tenant Act and other Acts to mean "those who have a tenant residency in those 
properties." 

Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, if we agree with the submission of this particular B i l l  5, then that right of 
advisement to those who have an interest in the property is e l iminated and therefore, they wi l l  not 
receive a notification . Now, the M i n ister may be able to argue that some someone w i l l  tel l  them; the 
word wi l l  get around, or friends wi l l  let them know. But the fact that it is, I bel ieve, absolutely essential 
that government have establ ished the right to i nform those who are going to be affected by law, not to 
rely upon word of mouth or i nformal subm ission and if it creates an inconven ience for the officials 
and the admin istrators involved , then that's just too damn bad . That frankly you can accept 
adm in istrative inconven ience if it means that you're provid ing a greater protection of the rights of 
those who are involved . 

Mr. Speaker, when I beg i n  to see a government pu l l ing in its horns just a l ittle - and I know the 
reasons why this b i l l  was brought in ,  Mr. Speaker . . .  

A MEMBER: No you don't. 
MR. AXWORTHV: . . .  I th ink we know the reasons why, we know the kind of representation that's 

been made by mun icipal  pol iticians to the Min ister saying,"Oh boy, you know, when we get those 

955 



Monday, March 21, 1977 

things, it ties us up and it takes time and we'd like to get th ings done in a n ice q u ick, efficient manner. " 
And , Mr. Speaker, we know that the M inister h imself went through a fair degree of aggravation only 
last year when he was out sort of deciding which pieces of property in wh ich he would plant his l ittle 
seeds upon which his new Autopac bui ld ing would grow. Therefore, Mr. Speaker, I can understand 
the feel ing of the Min ister that he and his confreres perhaps on a municipal level would l ike to get 
these things over with. They don't want to have them hanging around; they don't want to extend the 
time. Therefore, Mr. Speaker, I think that in doing so he is really making a fundamental error of those 
who have been in government too long. They begin to put admin istrative convenience over 
protection of basic princip les and rights. They beg in to assume that being able to keep the machinery 
turn ing is more important than making sure that the machinery can be stopped when it has to be. 
That, Mr. Speaker, is the kind of ink l ing ,  the kind of symptom we see in this b i l l .  

Now point number two is again the reflection of  the same k ind of  interest i n  proceeding with 
administrative convenience. They're simply saying that we can extend the time of i nvestigation of an 
enquiry officer without notice. Again ,  Mr .  Speaker, I ask why. Now, the enquiry office r - and I th ink it 
deserves looking a l ittle bit at the particu lar role that that particular person may play - the role of the 
enquiry officer in an expropriation hearing is designed very m uch to ensure that there is a fu l l  and 
adequate publ ic representation to consider a variety of facts relating to the case. It wou ld seem to 
fol low if that is the purpose of the enqu i ry officer, whatever the enquiry officer is about to do, al l those 
who are affected by his or her activities should have the right to know. And it there's going to be a t ime 
extension, surely there should be again a way of i nforming people that they have more time, 
particu larly when you consider the case I mentioned. 

Ottentimes those who are being expropriated are those least able to deal with them and it they are 
only g iven th irty days notice - assume that they only have thirty days to get counsel, get their case 
put together - then ottentimes it becomes an overwhelming experience and they g ive up.  But al l  of a 
sudden here's a case where government knows that the enquiry officer's t ime is extended but the 
people who are going to be affected sti l l  have to be notified. 

And again the Min ister may say, "Wel l ,  look, " . . .  There are certain pn:�ctices that lawyers follow. I 
know that several lawyers have been appointed enquiry officers, do their homework before hand and 
then ask the Attorney-General to set them up as an enquiry officer after they've put down the front 
end arrangements and that's a fai r way of doing it with in that th irty day time period. But sti l l ,  Mr. 
Speaker, I want to come back - I think what's important is what is written in the law and that we have 
a proper protection in the law as to what goes on.  There are certain practices that lawyers fol low. I 
know that several lawyers who have been appointed enquiry officers do their homework beforehand 
and then ask the Attorney-General to set them up as an enquiry officer after they put down the tront­
end arrangements. That's a fai r way of doing it with i n  that th irty day time and period. But sti l l ,  Mr. 
Speaker, I want to come back to I th ink what's important is what is written in the law, and that we have 
a proper protection in the law as to what goes on .  Mr. Speaker, that is a relatively minor point in this 
b i l l .  What is tar more critical, to my mind, is  i n  tact that this b i l l  amends the powers of the enquiry 
officer and begins to cut off certain areas of investigation or enquiry that that officer can undertake. 
The b i l l  really suggests that the enqu i ry officer no longer has a right to consider matters deal ing with 
compensation . 

Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, what is an expropriation proceeding al l  about it it isn't the question of what 
value is my property. It you have gone to expropriation hearings, and I have been at several and 
looked at the records of others, you' l l  find that the guy whose house is being taken over has one 
fundamental question in mind.  What wi l l  I receive in return and furthermore in considering what I 
receive in return what are you going to pay me for the social dislocation? The tact that you are tearing 
me out of my community. The tact that I have l ived here tor thirty or forty years and wil l  haveto totally 
d islocate my place of residence. What am I going to be paid tor that? And all of a sudden, we are 
saying in this b i l l  that those questions can no longer be considered. Questions that go to the very 
heart of expropriation . This enquiry officer no longer has the capacity to deal with. He is prevented by 
legislation.  

Now, Mr.  Speaker, I th ink I 'm beg inn ing to know the reasons why. That there was a great deal of 
consternation on the part of certain civic officials when one enquiry officer a year ago made a report 
on the Trizec Project and started suggesting what compensation should be involved , because it is not 
his business to do that. Wel l  I consider it to be his business, because Mr. Speaker, when it comes 
down to a question if there is going to be decision in the courts relating to compensation, the way that 
the courts now deal with the matter they are prepared to accept a whole variety and. range of 
evidence. And one of the sources of that evidence . . .  It the Min ister wants to ask a question , yes, 
please, sure. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Fi nance. 
MR. MILLER: Mr. Speaker, I'm wondering it I heard correctly. Is the member suggesting that the 

Act today is written in such a way that in  tact the enquiry officer can deal with compensation. Is he 
suggesting that that is now the Act and that is now being taken away from him? Because if so I think 
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that he is incorrect. It is my understanding the enquiry officer does not deal with compensation under 
the exist ing Act. Now that's my understandi ng and I 'm wondering whether that's the understanding 
of the member. 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr. Speaker, I 'm g lad the M in ister interjected because I th ink the way the Act 
reads now an enqu i ry officer is not expl icitly proh ibited from dealing w ith those matters. Under these 
amendments he w i l l  be expl icitly proh ibited. And what has happened in past cases, Mr. Speaker, not 
in a l l  cases but in those cases where it is considered a necessity to do so, and I can show the Min ister 
enqu i ry officer reports which in fact have considered cases where compensation should be 
considered. 

There was a case, for example, an enquiry officer report deal ing with an expropriation in 
Brook lands where i n  fact the case had gone on for a period of seven years and the person who was 
being expropriated had a legitimate right to say, look at, after seven years, don't you th ink that seven 
years of waiting should be taken into account, and the enquiry officer did take it into account and 
made a report so to state . As was also done on the Trizec expropriation case. So the difference there 
is that wh i le  many enqu i ry officers do not i nterpret their function to be that, some have and they 
provide a valuable service. 

And that brings me, in fact, to another point. I th ink,  Mr. Speaker, that rather than restricting and 
inh ibit ing and pu I l ing in  the rights and powers of i nvestigation and areas of jurisd iction of the enquiry 
officer, far more critical wou ld  be to broaden them . Rather than pu l l ing in ,  we should be broadening 
them out to ensure that agai n in  that very critical case that there is not those kinds of proh i bitions. So 
that if it  does come down to a matter of dispute in  the courts, the courts would  have a fu l l  weight of 
evidence before them drawn from a variety of hearings and sources and assessments. An enquiry 
officer, by the defin ition of h is  office, is seen to be an independent, objective commentator upon the 
merits of what is taking place, and that could and should provide a very val uable source of 
information and adv ice the courts cou ld take into account. 

And furthermore, Mr. Speaker, even when you consider it, again this Act that we now have before 
us proh ib its the enqu i ry officer looking at questions of legal ity of expropriations. Wel l  . . .  

A MEMBER: That's important. 
MR. AXWORTHY: I know it's important. Because, Mr. Speaker, let me g ive you the kind of example 

that I ' l l  bring before the House; that again no one is arguing,  I guess it has been in the common law for 
several hundred years, the r ight of the state to take a p iece of property. But surely the ind ividual has a 
right to say what are your purposes for taking it. And if in fact it's the kind of example where the 
Department of Highways comes along and says, we want a 60 foot wide swath for a h ighway. Okay, 
fai r  enough .  H ighways are important. But if that same Department of Highways comes along and the 
guy says, you know, wouldn 't it be n ice if  we had an extra 60 feet so we cou ld put a l ittle border on it, a 
l i ttle landscape kind of, you know, have that area protected , and we want that property, too, and also 
that extra 60 feet may in fact cut i nto or total ly e l iminate any agricu ltural value, then there should be a 
right to question the legal ity of that particu lar act of government. -(lnterjection)-

MR. AXWORTHY: Oh,  no. I n  fact there was an interesting case i n  the expropriations of the new 
park out on the east side of the river where, in fact, that kind of case occurred. I think that there has to 
be the right of investigation by enqu i ry officers into the broadest possible range of examination . And 
again ,  Mr. Speaker, if you look atthe b i l l  carefu l ly you' l l  see that in  fact the enquiry officer, as it is now 
set up,  has l im ited powers, in fact, has them even more de-lim ited by these amendments. And again I 
wou ld simply raise the fact that there have been cases in the past, and I ' l l  g ive you the example of the 
kind of rights that should be g iven an enquiry officer. This government should not have the right, as it 
has exercised it in the past, as it exercised it last year, to proh i bit ,  by Order- in-Counci l ,  the setting up 
of an enqu i ry officer. As they did last year in deal ing with the cases in downtown Winn ipeg where an 
Order-in-Counci l  of the Cabinet was passed prohibiting an enquiry officer to be establ ished in that 
case, even though requested by Counci l  for those who were being affected. 

So I 'm simply saying,  Mr.  Speaker, that rather than moving towards that kind of restriction what 
wou ld seem to have been suggested to me by the kind of difficulties the government itself got into last 
year would have been a review of how we cou ld more l i beral ize those activities to ensure greater 
protection and g reater guarantee, not to l im it them. 

But, Mr. Speaker, you can even go one step beyond that, I bel ieve, and say that again in deal ing 
with a matter of expropriation . . .  when presented with th is bi l l  on f i rst reading the order paper I 
anticipated its introduction because I felt f inal ly, maybe, the government wi l l  take into account 
perhaps the most crucial issue, and that is  the q uestion of replacement cost. Or what is a proper 
formula for providing people with the kind of protection that they need when it comes down to 
deciding their rights and g rievances. Again I can on ly say that we are d isappointed that the whole 
question of what is fair  value for property is  not touched upon at all .  And yet, M r. Speaker, if  there is 
anyth ing that is demonstrated by the Provincial Government's own acts of last year, is that by simply 
reg istering the right of fai r  market, which is a standard form u la in all expropriation Acts, they were in 
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fact creating a series of injustices upon the people whose property they were taking away. 
I d id some checking a week or so ago on several of those people who had their property 

expropriated last year who made the claim, which they cou ld only hypothesize last year, that to 
replace their house as it was down in the central part of Winnipeg with some form of equivalent house 
in another part of Winnipeg because there was no properties available in the same d istrict, wou ld 
require not market value for their own house but perhaps eight or ten thousand dol lars more. They 
were not g iven that. Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, their words have turned out to be true. A case in point was a 
person who was paid on ly approximately about fifteen thousand dol lars, what was considered to be 
market value on a street in the central portion of Winn ipeg . To replace it with a house not even s imi lar 
in  standard but in a d ifferent d istrict because of the markets being d ifferent cost twenty-eight 
thousand dol lars. And for many of those people, particularly those who are older, who don't have 
much in the way of their own financial resources, that becomes a very serious problem. And many of 
them are sti l l  facing those kinds of anxieties. - ( lnterjection)-

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable M in ister for Publ ic Works. 
HONOURABLE !RUSSELL DOERN(Elmwood): I would ask the honourable member th is .  The 

other day he seemed to focus upon the notion that the Land Value Appraisal Commission wasn't 
keeping prices down ; that the government was paying too much.  Now he appears to be argu ing the 
exact reverse of his position , that the government is paying too l ittle. Could he enl ighten us on this 
apparent confl ict? 

MR. AXWORTHY: Mr. Speaker, I only say that the confl ict appears only in the eye of the beholder. 
That what I am suggesting, in this case, is that the enquiry officers role and in the kinds of gu idel ines 
that we have put down in leg islation, wou ld provide a very d istinct recogn ition of a formu la that could 
be applied in the fi rst instance. The argument we were making last week on the land acqu isition bil l  is 
that what happens now is that there is a great deal of shi l ly-shallying back and forth and a great deal 
of kicking the price up because there wasn't that in itial representation, and we are saying thatthere is 
an opportun ity in th is expropriation b i l l  to begin  to fix that kind of problem . To make that proper 
definition in the f irst instance where it should be made, ratherthan having to get i nto a situation that is 
subject, sure ly, to a series of bargain ing .  

As I point out, when you get into those bargaining situations it's on ly  the strong who have the 
abil ity to real ly bargain,  and therefore I think that in many cases the legislation should be designed, in 
particu lar, to protect the weak. I wou ld say, that perhaps the Min ister's contrad ictions appear more to 
me to be on his side than on this side. 

Mr. Speaker, I think that i n  order to ensure that there is this fair  treatment of those who are 
expropriated that not only should the question of fair market value be al lowed to be more carefu l ly 
examined but there are also other rights that are necessary to be employed. I th ink it should be very 
clearly set out in the legislation that the expropriating authority be required to provide both a d irect 
i nvitation or offer to those that are being expropriated about what their legal rights are, and if they 
can't afford legal counsel to assure that they have the understanding that they can afford to obtain 
them. And if they can't afford to obtain them through their own private lawyer then the services of 
legal aid wou ld be avai lable to them. And yet, Mr. Speaker, there are many cases, again,  that I've dealt 
with ind ividual ly talked to people, where that ' has not been explained .  It gets to be a tendency on the 
part of, you know, some guys in government side to play the role of sort of Mr., you know, snidey 
whiplash kind of coming in and sort of act ing the role that they've got the m uscle, boy, and you better 
tow the l ine, and that they are not requ i red by the law to make sure that those rights are clearly set 
forth. I think that there is a principle in the American Criminal Law, cal led the Escobedo case where 
we a l l  see it on a l l  those crime programs, where every arresting offi.cer must read out the rights, 
saying you have a right to counsel before you can be arrested of A, B,  C, and D .  

I th ink,  Mr .  Speaker, the same rights should b e  contained in this b i l l .  I th ink  the requirement to 
state those rights is a fundamental part of the act of expropriation. 

A MEMBER: We have them now. 
MR. AXWORTHY: We may have them but they are not set out, and I m ust confess, Mr. Speaker, 

having watched and observed the activities of this government in  expropriation proced ings last year, 
I frankly wou ldn't trust them. I th ink that the rights have got to be laid out clear and simple and 
straightforward , and that if they are not obeyed they can therefore be charged in the courts. To rest 
upon simply the good words and good works of the Min ister leaves me sl ightly cold. What a cruel 
blow. I realize that wh i le the M inister is kindly considered by friends and family, I think when it comes 
to deal ing in areas of expropriation he is not a man that I would want to invite to sit down across the 
table. 

So, Mr. Speaker, I wou ld really make the case that it seems to me fundamental ly i l logical to 
establ ish the office of enqu i ry officer, g ive peoplethe appearance that you are offering a fair hearing,  
and then take away any jurisd iction to comment on q uestions of value or circumstances pertaining to 
it. Again it suggests to me that al l  we are doing is creating a l ittle bit as a subterfuge, a little bit of a 
pall iative. Wel l ,  I can see the reason ing going, you know, there is going to be a lot of angry people, 
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let's provide a p lace for them to show up at, make their grievances, say what they are tired of hearing,  
and then we kind of go on with the business of what we are going to do anyway. There seems to be too 
much of that kind of attitude creeping into too much of our legislation and in too much of our activity. 

So, Mr. Speaker, I would simply say that I th ink that this bil l ,  frankly, should be withdrawn.  I think 
the Minister should go back to the drawing board . He should go back to some fi rst princip les of 
what's involved in the act of expropriation. He should ask h imself what is really required by 
government to ensure that its actions are of the most just and fair and equ itable nature possible, take 
a look at the areas in the Expropriation Act which are not covered in th is b i l l .  The question of how do 
you arrive at the proper value, how do you assure that the right of those that are being expropriated 
are protected, how do you make sure that the enquiry that is undertaken is given the widest latitude in 
a proper jurisdiction . Those are the questions that should be asked in expropriation and that rather 
than going in the area of prohibition, restriction, and retrenchment, s imply to appease either himself, 
members of his department, or civic officals who have got their fingers burnt too many times because 
they have been burning too many people in the way they have conducted expropriation, I think it's 
time that he demonstrated in a much wider and more l iberated sense of what the responsibi l i ties of 
government are, and if he did that he withdraw the bil l  and bring it back in a much high ly d ifferent 
amended form . 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for St. Johns. 
MR. SAUL CHERNIACK: I wonder if the honourable member wou ld permit a q uestion. I d idn't 

want to interupt him but he said something about this government last year having prohibited an 
enquiry officer to make the investigation. Could he spe l l  that out so I wou ld know what he means by 
prohibited? 

MR. AXWORTHY: It is my understanding, Mr .  Speaker, and I would pleased to be corrected, that 
last year an Order-in-Council was passed which waived the setting up of an enquiry officer in the 
issue of the expropriation of those properties bei ng used for provincial bui ld ings. 

MR. CHERNIACK: Mr. Speaker, I had a feel ing that that's what happened. And the honourable 
member, in h is g reat enthusiasm for making a point used the word "prohibited". Mr. Speaker, I don't 
know whether the honou rable member, with the education he has . . .  -( lnterjection)-

MR. CHERNIACK: No, I 'm speaking.  
MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for St .  Johns is speaking to the motion. 
MR. CHERNIACK: I 'm asserting the same right the Honourable Member for Fort Rouge had when 

he spoke and I don 't know whether it hurts him to hear me speak about it, but let me tell them that it 
cou ld not be a point of order because if he misuses the Eng lish language in order to create a bias, 
that's his privilege as a pol itican. It's not to his cred it to do so, but nevertheless it's h is privilege. And I 
want to tel l  h im there is a big difference between waiving the requ irement for the hearing or 
prohibiting . Because prohibiting means that somebody was going to do something and he said, in  
my words, the government would not al low it to happen.  And if he doesn't know the difference then 
. . .  Oh, he knows the difference, there's no use my pretending that he doesn't. He deliberately used 
that kind of phraseology as as indeed d id h is entire speech make every effort to confuse the issue, to 
show bias, to create differences, to attack the government. 

Mr. Speaker, I'm sorry that I did not hear al l  of what he said because there may have been some 
things he said that were of value for consideration and to the extent they were then I would hope that 
the committee in dealing with the, assuming that I did not hear al l of what he said because there may 
have been some things he said that were of val ue for consideration and to the extent they were, then I 
wou ld hope that the committee in dealing with the section by section wi l l ,  indeed , deal with the points 
he made if they are valid and meaningfu l .  But so m uch of what I heard was just a broad axe attack on 
the expropriation program. I want the honourable member to know that I was, at one t ime, very much 
concerned with The Expropriation Act as it was some time ago, and I was party to del iberations in 
committee dealing with The Expropriation Act, I don't remember wh ich committee it was, and I would 
say that the one person who showed a greater interest and a greater knowledge than I had was a 
former prem ier of this good province, Doug Campbe l l ,  who spent a deal of t ime reviewing the 
legislation .  As I reca l l  it, we studied various reports made in other provinces by other authorities that 
were concerned with expropriation. I believe I recal l  one from British Col umbia or Alberta that had a 
great deal of content' and it was as a result of the study that was carried on that this Act was passed. It  
says, assented to in J u ly of 1970. 

Mr. Speaker, at that time, this Act was considered a great stride forward in the whole concept of 
mandatory taking away. I don't know whether the honourable member really meant expropriation is 
the most serious thing that a government could do. If he does, it just indicates the concern he has for 
material things in l ife that a man's land is probably more important to h im than other factors in 
government. But it was just part of the general attack he made that made h im speak in superlatives. 

Mr. Speaker, the provision which g ives the government the authority to waive a hearing by an 
inquiry officer is there in a case where it is in the government's wisdom an improper use of an inquiry 
officer, an unnecessary use, a costly use, for which the government is accountable. The decisions of 
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government are accou ntable. And the honourable member would have every right to on any one or 
other case where the government asserts the power g iven to it by the Leg islature to question whether 
or not he shou ld have done so. But just to suggest that there must be an inqu iry officer in  every c�se is 
inviting a bureaucracy, is invit ing a cost and is inviting a g reat deal of unnecessary and d ifficu lt 
delays to what may be a very necessary operation unless the honourable member does not 
understand the purpose of an inquiry officer which I am beginning to suspect is the case. As I recall it, 
there was no provision for an inqu iry officer under the former Act. This was brought in in order to g ive 
the community an opportunity to say, " If you're planning to tear down those houses and want to bu i ld 
a community c lub or skat ing rink or whatever, then we in the community, we the owners object to it 
being put here rather than somewhere else, object to the amount of space that is being asked for it. 
We have to have our input and the in_qu i ry officer is expected to look at a l l  the ramifications of the 
needs of the land." Unfortunately, I confess that I had found th is section in the Act which deals with 
the responsibilities of the inquiry officer. If the honourable member knows the section, I would be 
happy if he cou ld g ive me the n umber so I could read out of it. But the purpose of the inquiry officer 
was certainly not to act as the judge on val uation.  It  was certain ly not even to get involved in what was 
being offered or what could the owner acquire or receive by way of compensation. If he thinks that is 
the purpose, then he misFair game. understands the act. I wou ld not blame h im for misunderstanding 
it because I am not sure that he real ly stood up i n  order to make a positive contribution to improve the 
legislation.  I th ink he used the occasion to attack the abuses wh ich may be val id in  certain cases. But 
those abuses do not relate to the d uties of the inquiry officer especia l ly as it may affect the 
compensation pay. 

Mr. Speaker, people should know the purpose for wh ich they are appointed. An inqu iry officer 
should not be g iven the impression that the Honourable Member from Fort Rouge would l i ke to do, to 
say that you have the right to look into the need, how m uch is being taken , how much wi l l  be paid ,  you 
wi l l  be able to look into the whole question of what i nformation the expropriating authority has as to 
the value of the land. That he should know is not the role that was envisioned, especial ly s ince what 
did happen was a much broader approach made to enable the owner to have a proper hearing as to 
compensation before a court which is of independent status. And I go on:  The owner has the 
opportun ity to employ accountants appraisers, lawyers, whatever is deemed necessary, the cost of 
which wou ld be included i n  the compensation paid as I recal l it, with in reason ,  but that is there. But he 
is going further. He is going overboard in describ ing what he th inks ought to be the provisions i n  the 
Act. So, Mr. Speaker, I wou ld suggest that in the committee there ought to be a review of points that 
have val id ity. 

Certainly there wi l l  be an opportunity for people more learned than the Member from Fort Rouge 
to appear before the committee and criticize the Act as it stands now or the amendments as they are 
proposed. The honourable member would seem to indicate that the amendments are what is wrong 
whereas I believe that his attack was on the Act not on the amendments. Nevertheless, there wou ld be 
the opportunity. But let him not appear to get away with his broad attack with accusing without 
naming,  accusing the government of activities and accusing the Min ister of attitudes, accusing the 
people involved in expropriation with - I forget in what demean ing way he described their approach 
to their work - but rather to act, and I would expect he ought to during the Min ister's Estimates or 
another opportunity which he wi l l  find , spell out what he is talking about. It  is a l ittle too much to just 
hear this broad attack.  Let h im spell it out and let h im remember that the courts are there to protect 
both sides, but especial ly that side that needs protection more and that's not the expropriating 
authority. There is provision here for a great deal of protection , for a great deal of recognition of the 
costs involved on behalf of the owner of the land . 

For example, Mr. Speaker, he attacks a section in the b i l l  wh ich he says el iminates a number of 
people from receiving proper notice. I read what the section did read, I was able to find that one, and 
the existing Act reads, "The confirming authority shal l cause th is order to be served forthwith upon 
the owners of all land affected thereby who are not parties to the inquiry. " The change appears to be 
that the "al l  owners" in the amendment as proposed shall  be those who are ascertained from the 
records of the Land Titles Office on the latest revised realty assessment rol l .  I don't know the exact 
reason for the amendment but I have enough experience and the Honourable Meer from Fort Rouge, 
in  spite of what I said about his lack of knowledge of the Engl ish language, surely m ust understand 
that the reason would be that there has to be some l im it to the extent of what your notice shal l  be 
g iven. In other words, you have to know whom to serve before you make the service. And the way the 
present Act reads as I see it, it would almost be incumbent on the authority to know who are ail the 
owners of land, registered or not. And the way I read this section , they at least know where to look and 
if I were an owner, the Member from Fort Rouge were an owner, we wou ld make very sure that our 
names wou Id be on the records of the Land Titles Office. It's easy to get on there, very easy to get on 
to the records of the Land Titles Office if you have an interest. 

But surely, that's a l l  it is, instead of a l l  the devious thoughts that were attributed by the Member 
from Fort Rouge to the people who are proposing the amendment. Why they're trying to cut out 
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people. Why ' Mr. Speaker? Why should they want to do that. 
Act Wel l ,  the old Act did not say tenants. The present doesn't say tenants. But if the tenant has a 

right of ownership, and tenants do if they have more than a year lease, as I recal l  the law but I am 
saying it the general way ' I am not practising law whi le I 'm on my feet now, so I may be wrong, but as I 
recal l  it, a tenant who has a lease-hold interest greater than one year has a right to register a caveat. 
And i ndeed, that's the way to do it because the Honourable Member for Assin iboia who deals in real 
estate and manages property should know that it is not always easy to know who the tenant is, the 
tenant may not be the occupant, he knows that, too. And therefore, 

I in order to describe his property the people who have a stake in it do have a right to appear before 
the inquiry officer or to receive the order of the confirming authority. 

Mr. Speaker, I am sure both members of the Liberal Party present in the House at the moment 
know very well that a tenant whose rights are being expropriated wi l l  be able to make a claim before 
the hearing,  at the hearing ,  to present their loss and normally that loss is just a reduction from that of 
the land lord ,  because if they have a loss, then the land lord has that much less of a loss in the amount 
which he wi l l  receive. But in any event, it a l i  comes out in the question of val ue and the amount of 
expropriation, the consideration to be paid , the compensation as referred to by the Member from Fort 
Rouge. 

So a l l  I am saying ,  Mr. Speaker, is let us be a l ittle bit more bel ievable by being a l ittle bit more 
subd ued and by saying that there is val id ity in some of the points, not in  others, and let us discuss it 
for the welfare of the people of Manitoba in attempting to improve the operation of the Expropriation 
Act. And I wou ld think that that wou ld be more hel pful and I wou ld be certain that when this matter 
comes before Law Amendments Comm ittee that it wi l l  be dealt with in that way as the honourable 
member wel l  knows. But as it is, the improvements that are being attempted, if the Honourable 
Member from Fort Rouge would have his way, would be the withdrawal or defeat of this b i l l  - and 
he's nodding his head , Mr. Speaker. I th ink he is implying that he agrees, the withdrawal or defeat of 
this b i l l .  

I wou ld l i ke to have h im explain to  us  here in th is  House how he can better improve the Act as  it 
stands than to have th is b i l l  go into Comm ittee and reviewed in comm ittee so that the val id points 
made cou ld be improved upon . No, he would rather destroy the efforts that are being made to 
improve on the Act, and of course if he thinks there is no improvement, by all means he ought to vote 
against it. He ought to deny the opportunity of the committee to review it in deta i l .  That is the way he 
wants to do it. Wel l ,  I would almost say that he wi l l  prohibit us, if he had his way, from deal ing with the 
Expropriation Act at the next Law Amendments Committee. That seems to me to be his objective, a 
proh i bition . Now I am using the words he used so wrongly when he talked about the government's 
action last year where it waived the requi rement for the appointment of an inquiry officer. 

MR. SPEAKER: Are you ready for the question? The Honourable Member from Birtle-Russel l .  
HONOURABLE HARRY E. GRAHAM (Birtle-Russell): Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by 

the Honourable Member for Robl in ,  that the debate be adjourned .  
MOTION presented and carried. 
Bill No. 7. The Honourable Member f or Swan River. (Stand) Bill No. 15.  (Stand) Bill No. 19. The 

Honourable Member for Fort Garry. Eighteen, I am sorry. That's correct. Eighteen, not 19 .  (Stand) 
The Honourable Minister of Labour as acting House Leader. 

CONCURRENCE 

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Speaker, I suggest that before going into a supply debate, that I announce that 
it is our intention to advance Interim Supply as far as possible at this stage. I call on my col league, the 
Min ister of Finance. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister of Finance. 
MR. MILLER: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the Min ister of Labour, that the resolution on 

Interim Supply that was reported by the Committee of Supply be now read a second time and 
concurred in. 

MOTION presented. 
MR. SPEAKER: The Honou rable Member for Riel .  
MR. CRAIK: Mr. Speaker, we don't intend to bring up items on this particu lar resolution because 

we can get at them on the regular Estimates themselves. I have just one question, although I d irected 
a question the other day to the Min ister about what he used the 25 percent on, I am curious to know 
and want to getthe answer as to why the tax credits were subtracted out of the original Estimates, and 
they seemed to have just been pul led out right about the time the Estimates were tabled but the 25 
percent is based on the fu l l  amount not the amount that was the $ 1 1 1  m i l l ion subtracted for the tax 
credits. Now, it changes the percentage wh ich trad itionally means 25 percent if you use the smaller 
amount. I don't know it's of any great importance, but it really raises the q uestion very temporari ly the 
government has taken the tax credit, pu l led them out, calcu lated an amount of an expenditure but 
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they haven't used that amount in calcu lating thei r I nter im Supply they seem to have reverted back to 
the orig inal amount again .  

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Min ister should be closing debate. 
MR MILLER: Mr. Speaker, I thought that rather than respond now . . .  
MR. SPEAKER: Order please. The Honourable Member for Lakeside wishes to speak . 
MR. ENNS: Just briefly, in terms of your i nd ication that you were closing the debate on the matter. 

I don't th ink that is the case, Sir ,  is it? 
MR. SPEAKER: We have a motion before the House. We are not in Supply Committee, I nteri m  or 

otherwise, and the proper way to proceed on a motion is members may speak to it ,  and the M in ister 
when he speaks wi l l  be closing debate because he did introduce the motion. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Lakeside. 
MR. ENNS: Mr. Speaker, I just have a few comments to make. They are prompted by an occasion 

in  the past when this particular item was, of course, used in a time honoured and trad itional way by 
the opposition to influence or attempt to influence a del iberate and wi lfu l  government. I bel ieve the 
then Min ister of Finance was the Member for St. John.  The using of interim supply in that manner by 
an opposition has its trad itional roots i n  the parliamentary system , of course, not any longer with this 
government. This government has ind icated that it is quite prepared to go by special warrant even 
wh i le the House is sitting for any of the funds that they requ i re in Interim Supp ly thereby negating any 
position of opposition that's avai lable to us on this occasion . As the Member for Riel  has indicated 
there are other times in the d iscussion of the general Estimates, Capital Supply comes down, that we 
can discuss the individual matters that we are now passing one quarter of and we' l l  choose to do that. 

I only rise, Mr. Speaker, to remind the honourable members opposite that a l ittle b it of trad ition 
has been severely tampered with by this government and in  fact, S i r, constitutional ly it is sti l l  in great 
question as to whether or not their action at that date was correct; that is by going outside of this 
Chamber whi le the Chamber is sitting for Special Warrants. However, Mr. Speaker, that's I suppose 
just one of the lesser constitutional arguments that we' l l  be hearing a lot of in th is country as we try to 
keep this country together. 

Mr. Speaker, I merely want to remind h im that there has been a d ifference and that's part of the 
reason why the ready acquiescence on the part of the opposition to the speedy passage of I nter im 
Supply at th is t ime. Mr. Speaker, S ir ,  they have pu l led the trad itional teeth out of the opposition in  
having us being able to use I nterim Supply i n  a more effective way. Thank you . 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable M i n ister of Labour. 
MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Speaker, thus far this session I have remained rather si lent in debates. I th ink  it 

is the fi rst time, this session, that I did not take part in  the debate on the Throne Speech after having 
participated in many for many years. But I do not feel ,  Mr.  Speaker, as though I can sit qu ietly by after 
l istening to the Honourable Member for Lakeside because it seems to me that in his remarks he was 
taking out of context what happened a year or so ago when the government, i n  order to obtain  
sufficient moneys for the payment of  wages to  its employees and the cost of  operation of  the 
government did, because of the obstinacy of the members in opposition at that t ime, had to resort in 
order to fu lfi l the governmental responsibi l ities of payment of wages, had to revert or use legislation 
that was passed by the previous Conservative government. That is the reason for that. 

Mr. Speaker, it's now the 21st day of March and we're getting closer to the end of the fiscal period 
and I 'm happy to hear from the Honourable Member for Lakeside that there appears to be no 
incl ination on the part of opposition to withhold Interim Supply this year as i ndeed it took that 
attitude a couple of years ago or was it last year. . 

A very interesting occurrence has happened since then, M r. Speaker, that at the time of that 
debate here in the House there was a representative of the Austra l ian Government i n  Winn ipeg. He 
had found out about the method that the government was faced with having to use in  order to obtain 
sufficient moneys in order to proceed with the orderly conduct of government. On h is return to 
Austral ia a crisis arose there of a s imi lar nature that we were faced with here at that particular t ime, 
namely the opposition's reluctance to grant I nterim Supply. The net resu lt there was a l ittle bit 
different than here in that the government in  Austral ia at that particular time didn 't have the benefit of 
legislation that had been passed by the then opposition or by the government that preceded them. I 
thought, Mr. Speaker, it would only be proper for me to i ndicate to the House the pleasure, apparently 
we are going to go ahead with Interim Supp ly. But the mention made by the Honourable Member for 
Lakeside, I th ink ,  is taken out of context or at least it wasn't a fu l l  d isclosure of the situation that 
prevai led at that t ime. The reason for the Special Warrant was because at that particular time we felt 
that it was necessary to proceed accord ingly. We used Conservative legislation to do so and whether 
or not it was constitut ional ly correct, my honourable friend refers to that as sti l l  a problem' 
nonetheless, Mr. Speaker, I know that since that t ime the matter has been considered. I 've considered 
it, I've had numerous people who are wel l versed in the constitutional law and at that time we were 
qu ite in order. So I'm happy to know that we have the co-operation of my honourable friend.  

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for Morris. 
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MR. WARNER H. JORGENSON: Mr.  Speaker, I 'd l i ke to move, seconded by the Member for Fort 
Garry, that the debate be adjourned . 

MOTION presented and carried. 
MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable M in ister of Labour as House Leader. 
MR. PAULLEY:  M r. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Honourable Min ister of Finance, that 

Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House resolve itself into a Committee to consider of the 
Supply to be granted to Her Majesty. 

MOTION presented and carried and the House resolved itself i nto a Committee of Supply with the 
Honourable Member for Logan in the in the Chair for Health and Social Development and the 
Honourable Member for St. Vital in the Chair for Renewable Resources. 

CONCURRENT COM MITTEES OF SUPPLY 

ESTIMATES - RENEWABLE RESOURCES AND TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

MR. CHAI RMAN, Mr. Walding: Order please. We have a quoru m ,  gentlemen. The Committee w i l l  
come to  order. I wou ld refer honourable members to  Page 55  in  their Est imates Books, the 
Department of Renewable Resources and Transportation Services, Resolution 1 04(d) Wi ld l ife 
Management, (1 ) (a) .  The Honourable Member for M innedosa. 

MR. DAVID BLAKE: (Inaudible) . . .  areas that we covered Friday.  I know I missed some of them 
but I don't know whether we covered the possib i l ity that we may have a deer-hunt ing season and I 
wonder if the Min ister m ight tell us if the season is declared , how he p lans to run the season, whether 
it wi l l  be on the draw basis or whether it w i l l  be an open season ,  what restrictions or what areas may 
be hunted? If he cou ld g ive us some idea, or how they decide what type of season we should have. 

MR. CHAI RMAN: The Honourable Min ister . .  
HONOURABLE HARVEY BOSTROM (Rupertsland): Mr. Chairman , as I indicated, I bel ieve the 

last day we were considering the Est imates, the popu lation counts have just recently been completed 
and the department is now working on compi l ing the statistics. That work should be done shortly. 
They are also, on my instructions, looking at the alternatives with respect to deer season .  The 
recommendations are not firm yet and I expect they wi l l  be com ing forward shortly as wel l  and when 
they are, we w i l l  be announcing someth ing in due course. I can 't ind icate today anyth ing def in ite 
other than to say that general ly the in it ial  popu lation f igures that we have ind icate that the deer 
popu lation is in good shape, there are good num bers of deer, and it is very l i kely, in fact a good , 
strong possib i l ity, that we w i l l  have a deer season .  The type and nature of the season ,  the regulations 
and admin istrative detai ls wil l  have to be worked out, Mr. Chai rman . 

MR. BLAKE: Yes, that's what I was looking for, Mr. Chairman. I just wonder i f the Min ister m ig ht 
confi rm that these regu lations that w i l l  be arrived at are the decisions in consu ltation with wi ld l ife 
g roups or groups that are interested in the preservat ion of our wi ld l ife as wel l as with the people from 
h is  department, the game biolog ists and the other people that he would normally consult. I wonder if 
he would indicate to us that the wi ld l ife people, the various organ izations that have some fai rly 
sizeable membersh ips th roughout the province that are interested in land-owners' rights as we l l  as 
the deer popu lation and wi ld l ife management, if they wi l l  be consulted when the criteria for the hunt 
is being arrived at. 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chai rman , for the Comm ittee's information , I have operated on an open door 
pol icy from the f i rst time I was appointed M i n ister and the wi ld l ife groups and other interested groups 
i n  the province are aware of that. At least, I have made the point on every opportunity that I have had 
that I certa in ly wou ld not only encourage but appreciate the advice and suggestions that the Wild l ife 
Federation and other g roups that are interested in the deer popu lation and other wi ldl ife matters, I 
wou ld be very interested to hear thei r  comments and to have them commun icate either with my office 
d i rectly or with the officials in the department who have the technical knowledge and the expertise , 
and who wi l l  be eventually coming forward to me with certain recommendations, so that they have 
perhaps a couple of k icks at the cat, so to speak, if they wish to communicate with people in the 
department d i rectly or with my office either now or at some time after I have received the 
recommendations from the department. 

MR. BLAKE: Yes, another question , Mr. Chairman. I don't know whether the Minister would have 
the f igures read i ly avai lable. He cou ld probably get them. I wonder if he m ight be able to g ive us some 
idea of how many ai rcraft were employed in the deer count and how many days or hours they m ight 
have flown and what the actual cost was on the latest deer count. 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chai rman , that is a detailed question that I wou ld have to take as notice and 
bring back to the Committee. 

MR. BLAKE: Yes, Mr. Chai rman, f ine. On the hunting season , I wonder if the Min ister m ight be 
able to g ive us some indication of what the situation with the elk population, especial ly the Rid ing 
Mountain area, and if there is a poss ib i l ity of an elk season next year. That wou ld apply to the moose 
also in around that particular area. There w i l l  be a season elsewhere on moose, I presume. 

963 



Monday, March 21, 1977 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, I have not had any indication from the department that they wi l l  be 
recommending anyth ing different than the kind of season we had last year. Although again with 
respect to the deer, this is a question on which the department is working and wi l l  be com i ng forward 
shortly with recommendations as to seasons and so on.  There is no firm recommendation yet on 
either the e lk  or the moose seasons for next year. 

MR. BLAKE: Does the province do the actual el k count in Riding Mountain park or is that done by 
federal officials, federal parks people? 

MR. BOSTROM: I bel ieve that with i n  the park itself, Riding Mountain Natioanl Park, since it is a 
federal park, the popu lation counts for wi ld l ife are the responsibi l ity of the Federal Government. The 
province does not have the jurisdiction nor the responsibi l ity to manage the wi ldl ife in  the park. 
Around the periphery of the park, certain ly there would be. This wou ld be checked as part of the 
department's regu lar resource inventory. 

MR. BLAKE: The season then in  that area would only be declared in consu ltation or on the 
recommendations of the federal authorities of the national park. 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, there wou ld  be some d iscussion with them but not as to the nature 
of a season, I don 't bel ieve. Since the popu lation with i n  the park itself has never been subjected to a 
season ,  I don 't th ink to my knowledge, and the pol icy of the federal parks, with that particular park 
anyway, is not to have a season. So on ly as how it would relate to those popu lations of the park, elk or 
moose, that may venture out of the park, there would be some discussion between officials but more 
or less on an informal basis, nothing formal ized in that respect. 

MR. BLAKE: Yes, before I leave that, Mr .  Chairman , I am sti l l  concerned with the reported number 
of moose on Hecia Is land . I wondered if the Min ister has had complaints or just what the damage may 
be to the lavish faci l ities that have been provided there at taxpayer expense, how he wou ld be 
prepared to maintain the golf course in particular, free from damage by large animals traversing back 
and forth across the fairway. 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chai rman, that is a problem which has not come to my attention. There was 
some publ icity recently in the press regard ing one biolog ist's opin ion of the situation there, and I 
emphasis that it was one biologist's op in ion and was not done with the authorisation of the 
department. 

The department is  having regu lar meet ings with sen ior parks people to d iscuss the wi ld l ife 
management in that park and in others, so that I believe that a common-sense solution can be arrived 
at with respect to wi ld l ife matters in that park and in others. To my knowledge, there is  not a serious 
problem there and I think,  as I indicated in ear l ier comments on this issue, that common sense wou ld 
indicate that if in  fact there is a problem with moose numbers in the Hecia Island area, that the moose 
are intel l igent enough that they wou ld find their way q uickly off the island and onto the main land 
where there is an abundance of reasonable habitat for them. So I don't rea l ly think that if you look at it 
from a common-sense po int of view that moose numbers wi l l  become a problem on the Hecia Island 
park itself. 

MR. BLAKE: They don't understand "fore' ' ,  Mr. Min ister, when it's hol lered at them . Wel l ,  it 
certainly wou ldn't be to me, M r. Chairman,  it  wouldn 't be a very d ifficult task to check the island. It is 
not very large. And if there are 200-and-some-odd moose there as has been reported, it wou ld seem 
an overly large number to be on that particularly smal l area. I know very well that they wi l l  move, 
nature wi l l  ind icate to them where they should go if they are not find ing enough to eat on the island . 
Because there is a smal l  amount of g raze on the golf course, I am th inking of the damage they m ight 
do walking across it. It wasn't whether they were going to be grazing there or not but having made 
that poi nt, M r. Chairman , we won't belabour the fact the M in ister is well aware of our concerns that 
there may possibly be damage to that faci l ity there and that is our  main concern . That is fine for that 
item, Mr. Cha i rman, if some of the other members of the Comm ittee have q uestions. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Mem ber for La Verendrye. 
MR. BOB BANMAN: Mr. Chai rman , I would l i ke to just pursue one of the points that I have made in 

the last several years when th is item has come up and that is with regards to the type of hunting 
season that we wou ld possibly be having in the province. I wou ld wonder if  the Min ister cou ld tel l  the 
Committee whether his department has done any studies as to imp lementing a draw system for the 
deer season s imi lar to what we have had for moose and elk.  

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, that poss ibi l ity has been looked at and it wi l l  be one of the items 
under consideration when in fact we are considering the alternatives for a deer season in 1 977. 

MR. BANMAN: I wou ld just l ike to, at this t ime, again mention to the M in ister that I believe that if it 
did go to a draw system ,  what could happen is that you cou ld fluctuate the number of l icences that 
are issued from year to year, depending on the type of harvestable amount, or the type of game that 
could be taken.  So th is is my suggestion and has been for the last couple of years, that possibly this is 
the approach to take and we could l im it the number of deer being taken. I f  it is a good year, you raise 
the amount of appl ications that are g iven a l icence and on a poor year you bring it down. So I leave 
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that with the Min ister at this time. 
I wou ld l ike to ask the Min ister as to what kind of an arrangement the Department of Renewable 

Resources has with the Parks Department as far as implementing seasons in parks areas? And I draw 
this to the Minister's attention because I th ink as we get involved with dea l ings with the Federal 
Government for the implementation of wi lderness parks such as he is very aware of, the one east of 
Lake Winnipeg , also the Provincial Wi lderness Park that is being proposed just north of ihe 
Whiteshe l l ,  are these going to come under the privy of the Department of Tourism? What kind of 
game management is going to be included in those particular areas? Are you going to issue l icences 
in those areas? Whose ju risdiction wi l l  it be? 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr.  Chairman, accord ing to the leg islation , the M in ister of Parks has the 
authority within the provincial parks, although we have been operating on a common-sense 
admin istrative procedure whereby officials from my department, meet with the officials from parks 
and work out the detai ls for the kind of season and/or seasons that make sense within parks. The 
general criteria used so far has been a common sense one. Where there are bui lt-up areas of parks 
and intensive recreational use areas, the ideas has not been to al low hunting in those areas. However, 
there are wi lderness areas in parks wh ich are remote enough from any intensive use that have been 
opened for hunting and I submit w i l l  probably continue to do so for many years to come. 

With respect to the use of the fur resource in parks, there is a separate arrangement there whereby 
parks peop le issue permits in addition to the permit that is issued by my department, that is, a 
trapper's l icence is issued by the department and I believe that Parks Branch issues another permit to 
them. I bel ieve th is is for an admin istrative check to ensure that they know who is in the park and 
when and so on . 

With respect to l icences for hunting seasons, there is the one l icence issued and that is issued by 
the Department of Renewable Resources in this case. 

· 

M R. B ANMAN: With reference again to the wi lderness parks areas, wi l l  this come under the 
jurisdiction of the Department of Renewable Resources? And I am talking about game managernent. 
Because if the type of development occurs as the government has every once in awh i le expressed 
certain intent with regard to wilderness parks, would this be an area where hunting wou ld not be 
al lowed? Wi l l  that be again run by the Parks Department or wi l l  that be run by the Department of 
Renewabie Resources? 

· 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr.  Chairman, perhaps I d idn't make myself clear, but the legislation is clear in  
that it makes reference to the M inister of Parks having jurisdiction within parks for wi ld l ife, so that in  
effect the Min ister of Parks has the f ina l  say there. I n  actual operation of course, these matters 
general ly go before Cabinet and it is a government decision to fol low a pol icy of hunting or no 
hunting, whatever the case may be. 

In actual practice thus far, as I have indicated, the practice has been to al low hunting in those 
areas where it makes sense to al low hunting. There is no provincial park to my knowledge that is 
strictly wi lderness area. Al l  of the parks that have been developed in Man itoba by the Provincial 
Government have been m u lti-use in nature. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for Gladstone. 
MR. J AMES FERGUSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman . I wou ld l i ke to ask the M inister what the 

arrangements are to do with this wild turkey season .  I understand it has been announced there wi l l  be 
a season .  Now as I ask when is this going to happen and who is going to be involved? 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, I don't wish to prej udge Cabinet on this one. It  was announced by 
way of informal interview with one member of the press that we were considering instituting a wi ld 
turkey hunting season this year. It has come about as a result of a request from wildl ife groups that 
have been instrumental in  i ntroducing the wi ld turkey into Man itoba , and they are now at the stage 
where it is in the department's opin ion that a harvest can be taken because of the nature of the 
popu lations of the wi ld turkey in certain areas. I wi l l  be taking a submission to Cabinet next week 
recommending a wi ld turkey season and recommending the fee to be set and the way in which it wi l l  
be admin istered so an announcement wi l l  probably be made Wednesday or Thursday of next week. 

MR. FERGUSON: J ust another couple of short q uestions I wou ld l ike to ask whi le we are on it, and 
this wou ld be, are any Crown lands involved in the area or is this land all held privately? Is ther13 any 
negotiations going on between the province and the ind ividual owners or wi l l  this have to be done by 
the person who is wanting to hunt on it? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honou rable M i n ister. 
MR. BOSTROM: Mr.  Chairman, last year it was suggested that we have a season and one of the 

things that decided us to forego the season last year was ind ications from land owners in the area that 
they weren't too excited about us having a season .  

Most of  these w i ld turkeys are located on private land and my instructions to  the departmental 
staff were to have a look at the situation this year to see if in fact the land owners there are interested 
in al lowing the hunters to go on their  land, because it wou ld be academic for us to establ ish a season 
if the lancfowners won 't a l low people to hunt there. I n  recent meetings that have been held between 
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the land owners, the wi ld l ife groups and the department, there seems to be a spirit of co-operation 
here which would lend itself wel l  to other k inds of hunting seasons that are to be establ ished. If we 
can achieve the kind of co-operation that reports that I've been getting indicate, I would say that other 
k inds of hunting seasons cou ld probably be model led after this one. That's the in itial indications that 
I've had from the department, and I bel ieve that we can now proceed to have a hunting season 
because it appears to have the concurrence of the land owners in the area. It certainly has the 
recommendation of the wi ld l ife groups as well as the recommendations of the experts i n  my 
department that this is a good idea. 

MR. FERGUSON: Just one other question , Mr. Chairman . I 'd l ike to ask the M in ister, in  view of the 
fact that there are many wi ld l ife management areas being developed in the province could I ask how 
these are going to be classified? Wi l l  they be classified as unoccupied Crown land , or how wi l l  they be 
classified? 

MR. BOSTROM: Mr. Chairman, the department has taken the position that wi ld l ife management 
areas are classified as occupied Crown land. 

MR. FERGUSON: As occupied. Okay. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please. In accordance with our Rule 1 9(2) I am interrupting the 

proceedings of the committee for Private Mem bers' Hour, to return to the Chai r at 8 p .m.  
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ESTIMATES - HEALTH AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 

MR. CHAIRMAN, Mr. William Jenkins (Logan): I refer honourable members to Page 29 of thei r  
Estimates Book ,  Resolution 60(h) Dental Services ( 1 )  Salaries $1 ,060,900-pass? The Honourable 
Member for Crescentwood.  

MR. WARREN STEEN: Mr. Chairman , we were discussing dental services last Friday afternoon at 
some length . I d idn't have an opportun ity to say to the Min ister some of my comments regarding 
dental services. 

The M in ister is quoted in Saturday's Free Press as saying that the number of persons that have 
been serviced by th is program is in the neighbourhood of 8,000 plus and that the Estimate shows over 
$2 mi l l ion being spent on dental services. My qu ick calculation is that the cost of this program is 
around $260 per chi ld .  The Min ister also spent some time . . . .  

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable M i n ister state his point of order. 
HONOURABLE LAURENT L. DESJARDINS, Minister of H ealth and Social Development (St. I Boniface): On a point of order - because his calculation wi l l  be al l  wrong .  The 8,000 my honourable 

friend is talking about is for next year not th is year. 

I 
MR. STEEN: That's fine, Mr. Chairman, that's what I meant is that we're talk ing about the corning 

year's Estimates and the number of persons that the Min ister feels wi l l  be serviced by the program. 
The Min ister spent a g reat deal of time talking about the reason why the expenditure per user is fairly 
h igh ,  because of the start-u p  charges. He made some reference to Saskatchewan. The information 
that I can find, M r. Chairman, is that Saskatchewan has had their program in force now for four  years 
and from their experience they have found that the cost per chi ld has not come below $300 per user 
even in the fourth year and the program does not come down in cost even after you've paid your start­
up charges. 

There are a number of insurance schemes avai lable to the publ ic in  Man itoba for dental services, 
Mr. Chairman.  Firms l ike G reat West Life, London Life and Blue Cross offer such a program. B lue 
Cross, for example, offers on a group basis, dental services to fam i l ies and the cost per chi ld is $75.00 
per year; the premium . For a fami ly of four the cost is $260 per year. In Manitoba there are 
approximately 1 50,000 persons that are covered by various dental insurance schemes through group 
purchases. 

A good example is up in the Fl in Flon area where the Hudson Bay M in ing and Smelting Company 
has approximately 3,000 employees. They have a dental program for their employees and their 
fami l ies and yet this government feels it necessary to i nstitute a dental program through the Fl in Flon 
school division where in Flin Flon if we have 3,000 persons employed by the Hudson Bay M in ing and 
Smelting Company and if you use the rule-of-thumb that a fami ly is made up of four persons, even if 
we said that only 2,000 of the 3,000 employees were married persons with fami l ies we would have in 
the neighbourhood of 8,000 citizens in the F l in  Flon area covered by the Hudson Bay Min ing and 
Smelting Company's Dental Insurance Program . My question to the Min ister is, is a program in Fl in 
Flon through the F l in  Flon school d ivision, which basical ly just serves the City of F l in Flon, really 
necessary when the company looks after the majority of the persons l iving in Fl in Flon? Are we not 
having a dupl ication of services? Are we not lett ing the Hudson Bay Min ing and Smelting Company 
off the hook where their insurance carrier could be providing the dental services for the m ajority of 
youngsters in the Flin Flon area? I question the M in ister as to why F l in  Flon was chosen when we have 
Fl in Flon as a city wh ich is often referred to as a company town and they have some of the best 
insurance benefits avai lable in all of Man itoba. 

Another area that the Min ister went into at great length on Friday was the qual ity of service. I n  
Man itoba in the last two or three years, w e  have had 7 5  dentists graduate from the school o f  dentistry 
that have stayed beh ind in Man itoba to practice. Yet on the other hand the provincial government 
finds it wise to h i re dental nurses, send them out to Reg ina, Saskatchewan, to take a dental program 
- they go there on a g rant as my understand ing is of $3,200 the fi rst year and $3,600 during the 
second year. I 've also been told that 50 percent of the students that enro l l  in  this dental nursing 
program either drop out of the course or are dropped out of the course because of bad grades by the 
end of year one. I wonder whether it is wise that the provincial government Dental Services Program 
goes along with a two-year program of dental nurses when the fai lure rate is extremely h igh ,  when 
perhaps we cou ld work out something with the Manitoba School of Dentistry. For example, from my 
understanding the Dental School offered the provincial government an arrangement where if they 
subsid ized students th rough the Dental School they would see to it that these students u pon 
g raduation wou ld spend one year working in the Dental Services Program prior to receiving their 
l icense to go out into private practice. If  the 75 students who have g raduated in the last two to three 
years had remained in Man itoba perhaps we could be having a g reater degree of qual ity and service' 
if we had four-year g raduates from the School of Dentistry providing th is service rather than dental 
nurses who have two years of educational background. 

· 
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The 25 nu rses that were sent off to Reg ina the first year to take the dental nursing program were 
done so at the time that the Min ister and the Member for St. Johns were negotiating with the 
Manitoba Dental Association.  I wonder, Mr. Chai rman, i f  the Min ister was bargain ing in good faith 
with the Man itoba Dental Association in trying to come up with a scheme that was agreeable to both 
members of their  association and members of the government when at the very time that they were 
negotiating they had 25 students off into another province taking a dental nursing program. So it was 
obvious from Day One that the provincial government wanted to bring in such a program . 

I have th ree areas of concern, M r. Chairman . One is the cost. I th ink it's unbelievable that the 
i nsurance compan ies and Blue Cross can provide a program tor $75 a year tor young people, 
especial ly the people of the same age that this provincial government is covering where it is costing 
the government $260 per year to cover these chi ldren. He talks about the start-up charges. 
Saskatchewan has found from four  years of experience that the cost per chi ld does not come down. 
Then when he picks examples throughout the province that the program should be operated in ,  I f ind 
it  unbel ievab le that they would choose F l in  Flon as a particular jurisdiction i n  which to have this 
program go into effect when three-quarters of the people in  F l in Flon are covered through the 
company prog ram . So what he is real ly doing is he is letting Hudson Bay M in ing and Smelting off the 
hook from some of their responsib i l ities. 

Also, I can't help but bel ieve that 75 new young graduates in the last two to three years couldn't do 
a better job of looking after young peop le's teeth than nurses that have come off a two-year program 
and have had much less practical experience through their nursing program than the dentists get 
from their tour-year program at the dental col lege. 

My fourth point is that I believe that the M i n ister real ly led the Dental Association, and he did 
mention Dr. Ted Derrett on Friday afternoon, down the garden path when he and the Member for St. 
Johns ta lked about negotiating and trying to work out a good compromise with the dental 
association in coming up with a dental services program whi le at the very same time they had 25 g i rls 
off into Saskatchewan taking a nursing program knowing fu l l  wel l  that they had every intention of 
bring ing in this dental service program regard less of what the dental association in Man itoba thought 
of it or what input that they had planned to put i nto it. 

MR. DESJARDINS: Mr. Chairman, my honourable friend is right we did cover that qu ite 
extensively on Friday so I certainly wi l l  not belabour this but in a l l  fairness my honourable friend 
asked some questions, he d idn't have a chance to speak on on Friday so I ' l l  try to g ive him some of the 
answers. 

Fi rst of a l l  the cost in Saskatchewan, I w i l l  refer h im to someth ing that wasn't prepared by 
Manitoba, the same Journal of the O ntario Dental Association that just came out this month . I don't 
know where my honourable friend got his f igure. Of course they are all one-sided and he's stating 
that as if it was the Bible.  But here I 've got another f igure that i t  says the total per capita breakdown of 
SOP costs for the fi rst year's operation are avai lable from the Saskatchewan Department of Health 
and it's known that the cost per en rol led chi ld  is $1 58.29, not the $300.00 that he's talk ing about. 
There is no doubt my honourable friend wasn't l istening on Friday when I talked about when these 
people are on maintenance it's going to be something else. Now at no is time anybody talking about 
comparing certain work by an expert, a dentist, and somebody that has been trained to do a l im ited 
amount of work. That is the main thing and there is noth ing that wou ld d i rect that we weren't 
bargaining in good faith when it was an obvious fact that we were going to use the paramedical 
profession for certain things. The total cost you w i l l  see, M r. Chairman, and through you to my 
honourable friend , it wi l l  come down, if it was only the dentists involved, that's the second point. 

The th ird point, my honourable friend doesn't realize that there is a shortage of dentists. You can 
look at it anyway you want. I ' l l  go back to 1 925 in the -{ Interjection)- That's the year your dad 
graduated . Okay, wel l  the year your dad graduated there was one dentist for 6,637 in the rural area 
and now, 50 years later, there is one dentist for 6,400. So, you see, it's the same thing as the medical 
profession . Winnipeg is not that bad off but in  the rural area there are no dentists. And talk ing about 
F l in  Flon, there are two dentists in  F l in  Flon and there was a shortage of dentists in  Fl in Flon, too, and 
it is a un iversal program . We d idn't say, when we brought in  Pharmacare, there are certai n  p lans that 
are covered and so on ,  so therefore we're not going to cover, it w i l l  be a un iversal plan, but it won't be 
covered there. 

Why did we start? We d id n't start, as my honourable friend m ight have a point, we d idn't start with 
the City because there was better coverage. We started in Fl in Flon because the area was something 
different. My honourable friend is right. It  was the city and around the city or the town and th is is what 
we wanted to see. It's true, we found out some of the information that we wanted. The uti l ization 
wasn't qu ite the same. 

Now my honourable friend's fourth question. He was talk ing about the insurance com pany. Wel l  
the insurance compan ies are the same thing.  The uti l ization wasn't that, wel l you can be covered but 
i f  you are not using the services, the uti l ization and this is probably why it would be cheaper also. 
They were covering about half the popu lation. Now we're covering and everybody is paying.  So we 
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are covering instead of the 40 percent, and maybe less, 40 percent is counting everybody i n  an area 
so if the uti l ization was that you can just imag ine that the uti l ization covered by the insurance 
schemes wou ld be much lower instead of the 90 percent or 85 percent that- we have now, the 
util ization that we have now, Mr. Chai rman. 

As I say, I 'm not going to review the whole th ing again.  There is no point in being repet itious. I 
th ink I went into detai l  about the discussion that we d iscussed and it must be remembered also that 
the dental profession wanted to d iscuss this. They said is there anything that we want to discuss. 
We're ready to d iscuss anything and everything but then when they were told about the different 
g ivens well then it was a d ifferent story. Well that's not my fault.  I certainly agree that d iscussion is 
going to be, a l l  right, why is the government running this plan? Is that social ism? And that's fine. But 
let's have the argument on that. To say that there was no d iscussion that is completely, completely 
false. There was some d iscussion. Of course somebody has to make - a d iscussion doesn't mean 
that it goes on for generations - somebody has to take the responsibi l ity. 

We took the responsib i l ity as duly elected members of th is House and as the government and we' l l  
stand behind the decision that we've made. And we're sti l l  ready to  d iscuss with the dental 
profession.  We're ready to d iscuss, especial ly in  the rural areas, the use of c l in ics, of using them for 
sessional work and also using them for referrals. Wel l ,  they're getting those referrals. We're ready to 
discuss with them how best to try to and this is something we' l l  have to d iscuss with them the same as 
we' l l  d iscuss with the medical profession- the possibi l ity of what do we do and there is no easy 
solution .  What do we do to attract people to go outside of Winnipeg because Winnipeg in Winnipeg, 
it's not all of Man itoba. 

MR. STEEN: I thank,  Mr. Chairman,  the M in ister for his comments. I hope he d idn't referthat I had 
said there was no d iscussion because I know there was d iscussion between he and the Dental 
Association and h is representatives. I just say, Mr. Chairman,  I wonder if the government was 
bargaining or d iscussing in good faith with the Dental Association when they had al ready enrol led 25 
students in the Dental Nursing program in Saskatchewan. 

The reason I mention the insurance costs and if the Min ister doesn't know I wi l l  tel l  him that in  a l l  
l i kelihood the 1 50,000 Man itobans that are in these insurance schemes are usually people from 
higher income areas; wage earners in large manufacturing plants, that the manufacturing p lants can 
afford group benefits such as these schemes, and in a l l  l ikel ihood many of the persons that are 
enrol led in such group plans are persons that have had some dental care through their  l ifetime and 
therefore it's obvious that the insu rance compan ies are getting the cream of the crop and therefore 
can offer the services at a lower rate. I'm not saying that the Dental Services Program should ever 
think that they cou ld compete with the insurance compan ies because of the anti-selection .  reason 
for mentioning the insurance company prem iums arid costs is s imply a target for the government and 
for this Min ister to try and bring his costs per ch i ld down somewhat into an area, perhaps in the 
bal lpark area of these insurance companies at some future date. I admit that there are start-up 
charges with the program and I cite Saskatchewan having a program that's costing per ch i ld just as 
much in its fou rth year as it did in its f irst year. The Min ister d isagrees with my figu res. My figures are 
from the Manitoba Dental Association . They are not from his department which is very obvious. So 
we're both getting figures from various dental associations. 

The reason I cite Flin Flon in my questioning was that I 'm wondering if the Dental Services 
Prog ram and I ask the Min ister, is it letting off a major employer in th is province who has an excel lent 
group program going, off the hook with a number of students in  the F l in  Flon area because the Fl in 
Flon School Division and I gather from Friday's conversation that the Dental Services Program real ly 
works throug h schoo l d ivisions, wel l  the Fl in Flon School Division real ly only takes in the City of Fl in 
Flon. Other areas 1 00 m i les away from F l in  Flon are in d ifferent school d ivisions. So I 'm questioning 
the Min ister , is he lett ing Hudson Bay Mining and Smelting Company off some of their 
responsibi l ities. Is the Dental Services Program covering areas that these people shou ld be 
covering? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for Assin iboia. 
MR. PATRICK: Mr. Chairman, I wish to raise a couple of questions with the M inister at this t ime in 

respect to the same area. I know that the plan covers such things as preventative measures be it X­
rays and f i l l ing , X-rays and extracting teeth. Can the Min ister ind icate to the House what kind of a 
dental educational program is also included with this plan because I th ink whatever we do the most 
important fact wi l l  be the kind of an educational program , the Dental Health Educational Program 
which may be a g reat contributor in preventing disease in certain ch i ldren.  I th ink it's a very important 
factor so I hope the Min ister can ind icate is there such a thing included with in this plan , any kind of a 
educational dental program. 

The other point that I 'd l i ke to raise with the Min ister and I know that the M inister indicated the 
program wi l l  be operative in certain jurisd ictions and certain towns and certai n  areas. Now I wou ld 
l i ke to pose to the Min ister, I don't know if he can hear me or not, but say if there is a small area that 
has at the present time, you know I don't want to name an area, but say if in an area that there is a 
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dental office there with about two or three dentists in it or four dentists and a couple of technicians, 
nurses, which wou ld not at the present time cover the whole area or reg ion , and maybe with an extra 
staff -(Interjection)- in rura l  Man itoba, that's right, and with an extra couple of dental nurses and 
maybe three or four  dental nurses, that smal l  dentists office, maybe two or three dentists can cover 
that region without a government dupl icating the same system a l l  over again ,  so has the M inister 
consu lted with some of these dentists in rural areas and say, wel l  look this is what we want to do. This 
is the area that has to be covered. 

You have al ready expended quite a bit of capital in bu i ld ing a dental office. You have a couple of 
nurses but to cover this area, to cover the school division you may need another two or three nurses 
or four nurses and can some kind of arrangements be made with this dental office and the dentists 
with the government say, to g ive them service in this area. Because what may happen if you don't and 
bring in , say estab l ish a government operation in this district wh ich may not be requ i red , what wi l l  
happen? That smal l  dental office wi l l  probably decrease in size and staff, so what we're doing would 
be dupl icating there. What I 'm saying to the M inister, has he examined the possibi l ity of working out 
with some dentists in rural commun ities that are there now, that this program could be implemented 
say not total ly by the dentists but in some co-operation a program cou ld be implemented. 

The other thing is, I don't know if the M inister heard me or not but when I started I tried to find out, I 
know that the plan is supposed to include diagnosis and preventative X-rays and extracting and 
fi l l ing and so on. My point is what kind of education , can the Min ister g ive us some indication because 
I th ink that's going to be one of the most important factors in this preventative program . 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Min ister of Health and Social Development. 
MR. DESJARDINS: Yes, Mr. Chairman, one of the f irst things that is done to each chi ld is exactly 

this education . He is g iven a tooth brush and is shown how to brush h is teeth and also there is the 
preventative methods also that are g iven to them. There is a questionnaire that goes to the parents, 
f inding out especial ly about the d iet and then the parents, if they're interested , are brought in and we 
have people on that to g ive the education and there' l l  be a l ittle fo lder such as this one that wi l l  explain 
the programs and some of the work. 

Now as far as the rural area there is no doubt that we 
we' l l  bend over backwards. Wel l ,  f irst of al l  I don't bel ieve there is any worry that this program wi l l  

hurt any rural dentists. There is  no way. I th ink  it wi l l  he lp  and as  was mentioned by the survey with the 
Ontario Dental Association because that was a concern in Saskatchewan also but they find out now 
that there is more usage and the parents themselves are more aware of it and fol low through when the 
kids are out of school and they've been busy. 

Now if somebody wants to, is coming in in an area and God knows as I g ive you the figures, there is 
a dentist for over 6,000 people so they're going to be busy, they're busy - but if there's somebody 
that is trying to set up his practice somewhere and he wants to co-operate, no we' l l  not have two 
admin istrations and two programs. That is one of the things that I d iscussed at thet imeto see if there 
would be a p i lot project at the request of the dental profession.  They never came forward with a 
program. Now the decision has been made, it is a un iversal program . That doesn't mean that we 
cannot work with them but it wi l l  be the one program with dental nurses. That is not saying that this 
wi l l  be done in this way and that another way. Again ,  I mention ,  I repeat what I said on Friday. We wi l l  
be  more than wi l l ing to  d iscuss with the dentists, to  have them work with us for sessional fee, to  do the 
prel iminary examination and then of course getting all the referrals because the referrals are 
certainly not done and there are many instances that work is defin itely not done by dental nurses but 
by dentists and they would get all that work, providing the parents choose them. The parents could 
go anywhere they want but we wou ld cover the referrals only part of the program is the financing, the 
paying for the referrals but we don't del iver that at a l l .  

MR. PATRICK: Wel l ,  I 'm g lad to hear that Mr .  Chai rman , because it's very important. You may go 
into an area where there is  two or three dentists with pretty elaborate offices and good staff and what 
may happen is that that staff in  the office w i l l  be decreased in manpower because of dupl ication of the 
government so if something cou ld be worked co-operatively I th ink it's worthwhi le .  

The other point I wou ld l ike the Min ister, I th ink it's the last point I have on this topic, is what k ind of 
measure or yardstick is the Min ister going to use? How effective h is program is .  I understand in one 
of the States, I believe it's Iowa or Idaho either one, when I introduced a Resolution some three or four 
years ago to this House for the preventative dental care measures, their statistics indicated that by 
the time a person gets to a certain age by having preventative measures taken wh i le you're young that 
your dental costs have decreased as much as by 40 and 50 percent. Now they have a great many 
statistics to prove that. I hope the M inister w i l l  not have a great big staff or department involved doing 
this but I sti l l  feel there must be some way of measuring if the program is effective. There must be four 
or five years down the I ine, people in  the dental profession must be able to have some sufficient proof 
that the program is effective otherwise how do we know how good it is if he doesn't have some 
standards to find out if the program is worki ng? 

970 



Monday, March 21 , 1 977 

MR. DESJARDINS: I would imagine, I ' l l  watch the gentleman in front of me very carefu l ly so I 
don't go wrong on this, but I wou ld imagine the fi rst thing that we wou ld want to do ts test the 
util ization. I th ink  the first th ing we do is the uti l ization where at one time you had 40 percent. Now we 
knew th�t 60 percent were not getting any service at a l l .  That's number one. Of course the q uality of 
the s�rv1ce and we have a committee with dentists serving on that and standards wi l l  certainly be 
mentioned. And my honourable friend is r ight .  This is why we can't g ive a l l  the i nformation as to what 
it's going to c

_
o�t now because it wi l l  take a few years because you' re going to look at not only the 

start-up for c l in ics and staff and the people themselves but the maintenance. Many of these people 
would then be on maintenance and that' l l  be the important thing .  I th ink that when you look at the 
total ,  I don't th ink ,  I know that the cost wi l l  go down and when you're set up and so on.  But I'm not 
saying that it's going to be cheap. It is not going to be cheap but more people , you know, when you 
look at it, if you 're ta lking about total dol lars, you say, wel l you weren't spending that before. This is 
what's being spent by the insurance company. This is what's going to be spent. But if you a l l  of a 
sudden are doubl ing the people that are getting the service, wel l  then it becomes cheap for the same 
amount or maybe a l ittle more. So it's the same thing as people are saying, wel l if  you add fitness and 
if you add th is and that the cost of hosp ital care and so on wou ld be less. That's not true because 
eventually the people who need hospitals, the only th ing instead of need ing it at 50 or 30, it might be 
at 60 and 70 and the people are l iv ing longer. We have that in the Mental Hospital where the average 
was about 1 4  years o ld ,  now it's 32 years old' but I would th ink  that in the meantime the people wi l l  
enjoy the good l ife and wi l l  get proper care. We are giving an education that cannot do anyth ing else 
but to promote better care of the teeth and therefore usage of the dentists so this is why I think  they've 
noticed now in Ontario that that was one of the things the dental profession were very much afraid of, 
you know, you're coming in here; you're going to take over from us - and that's not the case at a l l .  
Fi rst of  a l l ,  they have a real shortage of  dentists especial ly i n  the rural area, not  on ly i n  Man itoba but  
a l l  across Canada and now you're going to provide more work for them if anything that w i l l  sti l l  be, 
maybe even more so worried about the s hortage. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Mem ber for Wolseley. 
MR. WILSON: M r. Chairman , the other day I asked the M inister a question pertaining to those that 

appeared to be treated that didn't fal l  under the six year old category and I asked h i m  what revenues 
did we col lect from those? I was talking about these cl in ics being out in the country. 

The other was, of course I had my figures of about $300 per pupi l  cost; I understand it has been 
brought out today that it was $260.00. Also, I wanted to confirm ,  it would seem to me that this 
program is basical ly being left to the rural areas. I wondered if the Minister has any of these programs 
in the city; from my knowledge there doesn't appear to be any because it seems that what they do now 
is his government g ives some moneys to the City of Winnipeg and they carry out a preventative 
program. I have a chi ld in one of the Winn ipeg School No.1 d istricts who comes home with a 
particular forms that says: "Your daughter has one cavity." In other words, there's some 
responsibi l ity left to the parents and that's the way I have understood the Denticare program, for lack 
of a better word , has been going on for years in  the Winnipeg school . system - preventative. 

Now I accused the Min ister the other day of never wanting to go i nto a un iversal program . The 
Member for St. Johns stood up and said ,  "Yes, it is going to be for everyone." Of course the Minister 
said, "No, it's just going to be for ch i ldren." Maybe the M i n ister could elaborate. When does he 
anticipate it w i l l  come into the urban areas, if ever? These dental nurses that are being trained, is 
there - and it may sound r idiculous but it's a concern that I have - woul d  i t  not be better if this 
program is never going to come into the urban areas, that these g i rls that are applying for the jobs, 
where do they apply? Wou ld it not be better if they had sort of a rural upbringing if they're going to be 
spending most of thei r  t ime in the rural setting? Is there any particular requirement? Where do they 
go to apply for this job? Do they have to have any pol itical requ i rement; do they have to be friends or 
relatives of the government; who can apply for these jobs and where? 

MR. DESJARDINS: The last ridicu lous q uestion I won't try to answer; the other question that he 
stated might be rid iculous was probably the best question he asked. Yes, M r. Chairman, we are 
recruiting mostly in the rural area and before they are en ro l led, they are told they wi l l  have to work in  
the rural area where they are needed so that is  a condition of  the enrolment. 

As far as what is the revenue, there is no revenue in this program at all but my honourable friend is 
talk ing about what was happen ing in  the department before, someth ing that has been combined with 
the department to fac i l itate the people in  areas where there was no dentist and i n  areas especial ly of 
the north. We gave incentive and we made arrangements with them just to go and work i n  these areas 
and , of course, that was for adu lts and is something that is not covered; it's not universal at that point 
and these were where the revenue came from. 

The City of Winn ipeg - I 'm not going to argue with my honourable friend again - I d id state that it 
wil l  be a un iversal program not for - I think the Honou rable Member for St. Johns talked about what 
the Party wanted; I 'm talk ing about what the government is doing now, it's announced a un iversal 
program for the dental care for chi ldren . Now the City of Winnipeg , I can't real ly tel l  h im exactly when 
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the City of Winn ipeg w i l l  be ready, it depends when you're i n  place, you're not going to announce 
something if you can't del iver the service .  There wi l l  be recru it ing,  it depends how much money I get 
from my col leagues, it cou ld be four  years, it cou ld be five years, it cou ld be less. 

Now what was the other - oh yes, the program that exists now. Of course there's going to be the 
same latitude and we need the same freedom of the parents and the i nd ividual that my honourable 
friend now has avai lable to him. The people are sent a notice. If  they say, "No, our ch i ldren w i l l  not 
participate" - they don 't. That's the percentage that I gave you on this that it's i nstead of being 40 
though it's around the 90s . .  The program that we have now, that the City of Winnipeg has; it is true 
that in certai n  areas, not in un iversal programs but in areas that the City of Winn ipeg does receive a 
grant from the province in some areas, in the Health field and on welfare and they admin ister it .  Now 
the program is not the same at a l l ;  it is a program of inspection and then there's a note that w i l l  go on 
to the parents tel l ing them that this is what their kids should have done. There's nothing done at a l l  
and the on ly th ing that is covered m ight be some people that are receiving social wel fare or  social 
al lowance. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for Crescentwood. 
MR. STEEN: I wi l l  try and be very qu ick,  Mr .  Chairman. There were two points that I raised earl ier 

and I wou ld l i ke the Min ister to comment on.  One was: Did the Man itoba School of Dentistry offer a 
program where graduating dentists, who were financed by the province through dental schoo l ,  
wou ld come to work in th is  program for one year prior to  gett ing their l i cense to  practise in  private 
practice? 

My second question is: I have been told there is a 50 percent dropout of dental nurses that are 
attending the Reg ina Campus of Dental Nurses. Is that true? 

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order please. The hour being 4:30 I am interrupting the proceedings of the 
Committee in accordance with Rule 1 9(2) and shall return to the Chair at 8 p.m. this evening.  

PRIVATE MEMBERS' HOUR 

RESOLUTION No. 8 

MR. SPEAKER: The f irst item Monday Private Members' Resolution . Resolution No. 8 is before the 
House. The 

Honourable Member for Sturgeon Creek. 
MR. J.  FRANK JOHNSTON: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. The last time this was up, Mr. Speaker, I was 

speaking to the amendment that was congratu lating the Min ister of Agricu lture for h is tremendous 
work that he had done and I th ink I made it very clear at that time that I don't th ink  that we can be very 
very proud of the work of the Min ister of Agriculture in this province, especial ly where the land 
situation is concerned . 

Other members have spoken before me real ly  trying to make excuses of other changes but 
wou ldn't admit  that it was because of the pressure from the opposition but main ly from the people of 
Manitoba when they went through the cou ntry and got the opin ions of the rural people regard ing the 
government owning all this land, that they found that it was certa in ly a program that was not 
desirable as far as the people in  the Province of Man itoba were concerned. The congratulations to 
the Min ister, I real ly don't know how we cou ld possibly support it now since he chose to become part 
of an election campaign and was thoroughly beaten whi le he was i n  it .  If he had been a M i nister i n  
Agriculture who wou ld have just tu rned the elections over to the Ch ief Electoral Officer o f  this 
Province and we had a standard form of having elections, nobody would be involved in  it ,  but the 
Min ister wanted to go on an election campaign and he went out and d id it and he lost. Quite frankly, 
that takes any congratu lations that m ight have been presented to the M i nister much farther away. 

Mr. Speaker, the reso lution to beg in  w ith was a l i ttle redundant in that the government had made 
the change and for the government to then amend it, congratulating the Min ister for the change and 
the reasons he did it and pat h im on the back is absolutely not acceptable and even less acceptable 
today because we have a Min ister who changed because the farmers didn't I i ke it. A M  in ister who was 
in a battle with every part of the farm industry; f i rst the m i l k  producers; then some other producers; 
then somebody else and then got into an election campaign with both feet and lost. You know, quite 
frankly, congratulations are not in o rder, Mr. Speaker, and we cou ldn't possibly support this 
amendment. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Attorney-Genera l .  
MR. PAWLEY: Mr. Speaker, I am happy to  have an opportun ity to  participate in  th is  debate on the 

motion to congratulate the M in ister of Agriculture and certainly insofar as our M in ister of Agricu lture 
is concerned in Man itoba, the M in ister of Agriculture since 1 969 to the present t ime. I wou ld th ink  and 
I say this not l ightly, Mr. Speaker, that there had been few, if any, M in isters of Agricultu re that have 
done the job as wel l  in providing benefits to Man itoba farmers than the present M i n ister of 
Agriculture in the Province of Man itoba. 

Mr. Speaker, we can only reflect back to the t imes of the TED Report, wh ich was commissioned by 
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the former government in this province in 1 969, when they predicted a large decrease in the number 
of farmers operating farmlands in the Province of Man itoba. In  fact, Mr. Speaker, it predicted a drop 
to some 20,000 farmers operating farm un its in Man itoba by 1 980 and, of course, the phi losophy of 
the TED Report of the Conservative government of that day and of Min isters of Agricu lture which 
were part and parcel of the Roblin-Weir governments, was that farms should be larger and larger and 
fewer and fewer. That was the phi losophy that was embodied in the TED Report and it was a 
phi losophy wh ich existed in June 1 969 when this government was elected and when the present 
Min ister of Agriculture assumed his responsibi l ities. In fact' Mr .  Speaker, it was ind icated by the fact 
that it was the former government that withdrew the loan program under the Man itoba Agricu lture 
Credit Corporation , the former government got out of the lend ing business insofar as young farmers 
were concerned in Manitoba. Young farmers didn't have anywhere to turn in June 1 969 for financial 
assistance insofar as the province was concerned. Sure, honourable members wil l refer to the Farm 
Credit Corporation at the federal leve l ,  but insofar as the provincial instrumentality, there was no 
assistance being granted to young farmers so that they cou ld commence their farm operations. So 
that in June 1 969 we had a situation wh ich can be thorough ly documented , that some 60 percent of 
the debt cost to the average farmer attributable to land, whether it be by way of principal ,  i nterest or 
taxes, was not being taken care of by way of any program from the provincial level of government. 
There was a total and complete vacuum insofar as the former government was concerned; i nsofar as 
providing assistance to young Man itoba farmers. 

So that what happened in June 1 969 is that the Min ister of Agricu lture who I m ust say that I am 
very proud of because I think  that he has demonstrated leadersh ip at great courage, Mr. Speaker, 
often to h imself and has often had to pursue rather unpopu lar causes, but that does not mean that 
those causes had been wrong.  I think with the passage of time, he has again and again ind icated, it's 
been shown that the positions that he has adopted have general ly been correct ones. A pol icy was 
developed that which is the one that is presently under such attack. 

Now in the election of 1 973, honourable members wi l l  recal l  huge one-page advertisements in 
most of the newspapers in Man itoba wh ich showed monstrous hands reaching around the 
Leg islative Bu i ld ing,  and the message that a certain political party in this province were trying to infer 
to the Man itoba voter is that there was a ' government that was p lann ing to far-out rad ical 
revolutionary confiscate all the farmlands in the Province of Man itoba. I can recal l  campaigning -
( Interjection)- yes, Mr. Speaker, in the weeks and months prior to the June 1 973 election and 
unfortunately, M r. Speaker, there were a few farmers who bel ieved the honourable gentleman 
present, believed the paid advertisements that the honourable gentlemen opposite were responsible 
for in  the news media and , i n  fact due to this type of fear campaign wh ich is so typical repeatedly, 
repeatedly typical of the Conservative Party i n  Man itoba, it undoubted ly had some success from their 
point of view in the 1 973 e lection. But that does not mean that the pol icy that was advanced by the 
Minister of Agricu lture in Man itoba was not a correct one. And , M r. Speaker, what it did do was: 1 .  It 
provided an opportun ity for those farmers who had reached 65 years of age to sel l their lands to the 
Manitoba Agricu ltural Credit Corporation so that young farmers in turn cou ld purchase those same 
lands so they could establ ish an econom ic farm un it. It wasn't a question of confiscation, of 
nationalization . It wasn't an ideolog ical area at a l l  though honourable members are working so much 
under the huge b l inkers that are presented to them as a result of doctrinaire r igidity. It had nothing to 
do with this; it was a practical program made avai lable to young farmers in Man itoba permitting them 
to get into l ivestock operations, other type of farm operations and permitting farmers when they had 
reached an age of retirement that they could step aside and let young farmers commence. Th is was 
the program in contrast to a no-program when this g overnment was elected in J une 1 969, from a no­
program, from a complete policy vacuum,  a pol icy that was represented by the TED Report wh ich 
foresaw the e l imination of thousands of farmers in the Province of Man itoba by that party which now 
represents the Opposition in Man itoba. This was an alternative that was provided by our government. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, much ado is being made about the fact that the Min ister of Agriculture 
undertook certain changes the other day to this leg islation. I don't see, M r. Speaker, where these 
changes are of such a nature as cou ld not honestly be said that they improved the program without 
undermin ing the best aspects of the program as it's been in effect since 1 972. We've always had a 
provision, always had a provision i n  the legislation providing for a purchase back with in five years, an 
option by provision . Any young farmer could purchase that land which he was renting from the 
Province of Man itoba, return it to his individual ownership at the end of five years. There has always 
been option program but what the proposed pol icy statement that the Honourable M inister of 
Agriculture presented was that over a 20-year period young farmers cou ld in fact purchase the 
property that they had been renting and could, on a g raduated basis, gradual ly have returned to them 
some of the benefits of the capital gain ,  five percent each year. This was a reasonable proposal yet I 
happened to be in committee when the M in ister of Agricu lture presented this proposal the other 
evening and I must admit I was amused , but yet rather taken back, at the contradictory response from 
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the Honourable Member for Pembina. He expressed consternation and distaste. Distaste, to put it 
very m i ldly, for the proposals. The Honourable Member for Gladstone seemed to be very, very 
uptight, very fidgety about the proposals. I don't know why he was so uptight, why he was so fidgety. 
The Honourable Member for Pembina, as I say, expressed d istaste. And f inal ly after a g reat deal of 
perplexity, confusion in  the ranks of the opposition and yes, anger, then I seemed to sense that they 
were then saying,  wel l  this is  a pretty good thing after a l l .  This is what we've been advocating you do.  
That was the impression, but f i rst we had to go through th is no man's land of perplexity, confusion, 
anger and down right uptightness. So the honourable members were in some way fearfu l that these 
proposals would undermine thei r particular electorial ambitions, in what they expect to be election 
year. That's the on ly interpretation that I could g ive to the reaction by the honourable members the 
other evening in committee, to the proposals. 

So that, Mr. Speaker, we have a p rogram that I think we can be proud of i n  Manitoba; a program 
which has tested the passage of a number of years, that has tested the attacks launched against it 
during a hysterical campaign that was in itiated by the present opposition ;  a program which has been 
improved as a result of the very constructive amend ments by the M in ister of Agriculture. I I th ink that, 
Mr. Speaker, if I can say so, and I say it in a l l  modesty, that as a resu lt of the changes by the M in ister of 
Agriculture that he has developed - not only he but th rough the assistance of h is  advisers in his 
department - that without question , without doubt ,  he has developed one of the best programs 
pertaining to support for young farmers trying to get into farm operations, in  order to provide them 
with some alternative as to the type of operation they actual ly launch and at the same time providing 
some means by which those farmers who wish to reti re can so reti re atthe age of sixty-five. And at the 
same time, Mr. Speaker, he has made it feasible,  he has made it possible, in fact he has made it in  such 
a way that young farmers can be encouraged to pu rchase the land and place that land in thei r  own 
title, in their own name. He has done all these th i ngs. Now what more can a Minister of Agricu lture be 
expected to do? And therefore, Mr.  Speaker, I th ink that we have no alternative under these 
circu mstances but to salute the efforts by the Min ister of Agricu ltu re and the thought, and the work, 
that he has contributed towards th is present program, Mr.  Speaker. Thanks. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Mem ber for Morris. 
MR. JORGENSON: Mr. Speaker, the self-serving resolution that is now before the House i nviting 

the members of this House to congratu late the Min ister of Agriculture on his program would be 
laughable if  events of the last few days were not so trag ic for the Min ister of Agriculture. I think that 
farmers of this province have ind icated very clearly what they th ink of this Min ister of Agriculture and 
his programs. 

But,  Mr .  Speaker, we have compassion for the M in ister i n  these days, who doesn't come into the 
House very often now, and we're going to al low, notwithstanding the hard l i ne taken by the Member 
for Sturgeon Creek, we're going to al low - as if we had any alternative - the amendment to pass. I 
don't think rea l ly that it's so different from many resolutions that are i ntroduced by honourable 
members opposite on these occasions, self-servi ng,  congratu latory messages in order to bolster the 
sagging spirits of honourable gentlemen opposite. If that makes them happy, why fine. They can 
wal low in that k ind of condolence, if they choose. 

The Attorney-General talked about how this government, and how this Min ister has come to the 
assistance of the young farmers and helped them get i nto production and get land. And then he 
compared that with the program that was in existence prior to the time that this government came 
i nto power. What he fai ls to mention,  of course, is  that that d i fficu lty was not there unti l this 
government came into power. And what this govern ment has done, and what this Min ister has done, 
has created al l thei r  own d ifficu lt ies. It created those 

d i fficult ies notwithstanding the advice and the suggestions g iven to them by members on this side 
of the House, and members in the farm ing industry themselves. There isn't a problem that the 
Min ister isn't confronted with today that isn't of h is own making.  

And , you know, it's very easy to keep com ing to the rescue of the farmers if you get them into 
trouble in the f irst p lace. And that's what this government has consistently done in the eight years 
that they have been in power. You know, they point with a g reat deal of pride to the th i rty-odd m i l l ions 
of dol lars that is now being spent in  agricu lture as opposed to the smal l  amounts that were spent in  
previous years. Wel l  it's a longstand ing axiom of Departments of Agricu lture that the more you spend 
on agricu ltu re the worse off they are. The success of the agricu ltural industry has always been 
inversely proportional to the amount of money that you spend on it. And if my honourable friends 
opposite take any consolation and any satisfaction in the thirty m i l l ion dol lar budget that they now 
propose for ag ricu lture they can also be assured in the knowledge that agricu lture is in  bad shape as 
a resu lt of the pol icies that they have been implementing.  

The Min ister made some reference to the reaction of the opposition when the announcement was 
made by the Min ister of Agricu lture. Wel l ,  that shouldn't be surp rising because a l most invariably my 
immediate reaction to anyth ing th is  government does is to oppose it, on principle, unti l we've had an 
opportun ity to examine a l l  of the l i ttle fish-hooks that are in it. And of course the pu rpose of those 
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amendments were very obvious; obvious from the f i rst day that the Min ister took h is committee 
through the cou ntry in an effort to find o ut what farmers were th inking about insofar as foreign 
ownership of land was concerned . And I draw that to the Min ister's attention because he just accused 
us of in itiating the reaction that took p lace when the comm ittee held its hearings. Wel l ,  when the 
committee was set up - don't have the precise wording of the resolution before me, but the 
committee was set up, not to examine the government ownersh ip of land, it was set up for the 
purpose of examining foreign ownersh ip .  That was the purpose of that corn m ittee, they were going to 
tour  the province to determine what the farmers thought about foreign ownership of land, if they 
wanted any pol icies or any legislation implemented in this Chamber for the purpose of restricting 
foreign ownersh ip of land . 

But what happened? From the very first brief that was presented to that committee - you know, 
the honourable gentlemen opposite can g ive me and the Member for Lakeside a l l  the credit they want 
for our capacity in organizing farmers. I tel l  you I know enough about farmers that you don't organ ize 
them very easi ly,  as the Min ister h imself has found out, and to do us the credit of suggesting that we 
were capable of d ragging forcibly a l l  those farmers who appeared before that committee and 
presented briefs, not against foreign ownership of land,  no, against government ownersh ip of land. 

The Min ister, apparently, is incapable of d istinguishing a gut reaction , an immediate reaction, and 
a sincere emotion, from a pseudo one. I tel l you that people that appeared before that committee, 
t ime after time, meeting after meeting, were not prompted by anybody else. It was their immed iate 
reaction to the government policy of farm ownership of land , and they expressed it in no uncertain 
terms. Those farmers that appeared before that committee were expressing their sincere feel ings 
about the unfair kind of competition that they were experiencing in having to bid on the government 
on ownership of land , in the areas in wh ich they wanted to purchase land . They were expressing their 
resentment at having to bid against their own money, the taxpayers' money, i n  order to buy land that 
they wanted. And there were various nuances to the opposition to government ownersh ip of land that 
were expressed , and expressed very forcibly, by various people who appeared before that 
committee. 

Now that wasn't the only area in which there was opposition expressed against the government 
pol icy of farm ownersh ip.  At my honourable friends' convention,  at the Convention Centre in 197 4 -
l ' m  sure it was 1 974 o r  1 975, the N O P  Convention held in  the Convention Centre, there was 
opposition expressed there by the delegates that attended that convention. And I hope my 
honourable friend , the Attorney-Genera l ,  does not accuse the Member for Lakeside and myself of 
having organ ized that kind of opposition .  Because I th ink that would be stretching the imag ination a 
l ittle bit too far to suggest that we cou ld have any inf luence with those delegates. But opposition they 
did present, and opposition they did expect. And so to suggest here, in this Chamber, that the 
opposition to the g overnment's program was i n itiated and instigated by the members on this side of 
the House is just a l ittle bit far fetched. And I suspect that the Attorney-General , h imself, made that 
remark with tongue-in-cheek. 

Now then,  Mr. Speaker, the Min ister went on to mention the TED Report. And th is has been done 
on numerous occasions, throughout the hearings, since, and I suspect even before. What they are 
attempting to do is to suggest that the observations that were contained in the TED Report were 
government pol icy. The fact was that that TED Report was not released unti l after the government 
changed hands, so how could it possibly be government pol icy? How cou ld we embrace it, if we 
weren't the government? It was an observation that was based on the . . .  And you know I have some 
knowledge of how these projections are made. They are made on the basis of a study of past records 
and past history, projected into the future. That happens very frequently. There is one d ifficulty with 
making projections on that basis, as some of the people who have made projections have found out. 
And that is if economic circumstances change, or if attitudes change, or markets change, and world 
conditions - as my honourable friend , the Member for Pembina, has pointed out - if they change, 
then that pattern does not necessari ly fol low. And that happened in agricu lture. I th ink on the basis of 
the history, up  to that point, those who were responsible for the final drafting of the TED Report, 
perhaps with some justification, had made that pred iction , but events have proven them wrong.  

There have been several events that have proven them wrong .  One has been the different 
economic c l imate throughout the world today, the sudden surge of market opportunites that started 
in about 1 972 and continued on unti l  1 973. Land costs have to a large extent, at least in the area with in 
about a 50-mi le rad ius of the city of Winnipeg, have changed considerably. We don't have the rural 
areas now empty in these smaller towns and v i l lages with in that periphery or that radi us of the city of 
Winnipeg . They are f i l l ing up .  Wel l  my honourable friend opposite says the stay option is working. He 
said it very qu ietly because I don't suppose he wanted too many people to hear it. But it  has nothing to 
do with stay option .  Noth ing to do with stay option whatsoever. If my honourable friends want to take 
credit, if  they want to suggest that there's stay option, then the biggest factor in the stay option was 
the increase in land costs in the city of Winn ipeg that has moved a lot of people out i nto the rural 
areaas. Second ly, there has just simply been a change in attitudes of a lot of people. At one time, 
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everybody wanted to move i nto the city. Everybody wanted to move into the city. It was the place 
where the l i festyle was the best. That attitude has changed. People now want to get back - the 
ecology, the envi ronment; a greater awareness of the environment has changed the attitudes of a lot 
of people. They now want to move out i nto rural areas. They find that their l ifestyle can best be 
fulfi l led in a rural or a smal l com munity area. 

Those things have done more to change that k ind of pattern than anyth ing that has ever been 
del i berately concocted by honourable gentlemen opposite. The fact is that these changes wi 11 occur 
from time to time, as my honou rable friends wi l l  find out. Factors beyond their control wi l l  be 
i nfl uential in determi n ing what people wi l l  or w i l l  not do. And , my honou rable friends, if  they persist 
- you know they can't have it both ways and neither can we. I'm going to make a deal with my 
honourable friend , the Attorney-General. From time to time I have quoted excerpts from the 
Guidel ines for the Sevent ies and had attr ibuted to my honourable friends opposite that that was their 
policy. They den ied . They said it was just a working paper that was presented to the government and 
did not necessari ly reflect government opinion. Fine. I am prepared to accept that but I want them to 
stop suggesting that the projections and the report contained in the TED Report are government 
pol icy as wel l .  My honou rable friend can't have i t  both ways. 

It just seems to me, Sir ,  that if the honourable gentlemen opposite are i nterested in the interests of 
accuracy and honesty to reflect the events as they actually are rather than what they wou ld prefer to 
portray them , they wou ld have less difficu lty in being bel ievable. But it is a tendency on the part of the 
honourable gentlemen opposite to exaggerate, to state facts that are not indeed facts or to make 
statements that they pu rport to be facts, and to attach responsib i l ity and b lame in areas where blame 
and respons ib i l ity cannot legitimately be attached. 

I suggest to my honourable friends that in  the area he suggested , that we were in favour  of farms 
getting larger. I remember making speeches in this Chamber not once but on several occasions 
where I suggested that in agricultu re as in almost any business, there is a l imit to how large any farm 
can get. I do know and I do recal l having made these observations that there is a self- l imit ing factor 
involved in agricu lture, and that is just as soon as the farm gets beyond the personal capacity of one 
man to manage it, it w i l l  begin  to deteriorate. That has been proven to be a fact in  so many cases that I 
am surprised that my honou rable friends haven't recogn ized it. 

It was the Min ister of Agriculture who in a f lourish used the statement made by Labatt's Ogi lvie 
that they were going to bui ld a feed p lant in  Otterburne and a hog breed ing station in Steinbach. He 
used that as a means of gett ing the Hog Marketing Board in without a vote. That was the impetus that 
he used and it was a false thing.  But where is that feed plant? The co-op owns it now. They sold it to 
the co-op movement. And there is no hog research station and that is the pity because such a hog 
breed ing station in this province wou ld have served the hog industry very wel l .  It is a pity that the 
Min ister chose that opportun ity to be pol itical rather than be sensible and responsible as a M inister. 

MR. CHAIRMAIN: The Honou rable Min ister of Ag ricu lture. 
MR. USKIW: Mr. Chairman, I regret that I didn't hear a l l  of the remarks of the Member for Morris 

A MEMBER: Aw, they weren't very much .  
MR. USKIW: . . .  because usual ly they are qu ite enterta in ing,  if not necessari ly factual . I th ink  one 

thing is  certain , that whenever the Member for Morris speaks, we on this side do enjoy it to qu ite a 
degree. He is a fairly good orator and of course he does give us the odd chuckle when he tends to 
exaggerate the point he is making.  

I wou ld l i ke to suggest to the Member for Morris that I don't know what it i s  that preoccupies the 
mi nds of friends opposite on this issue because i t  is really a non-issue in the sense that it g ives the 
land-lease program, tends to g ive prospective farmers and existing farmers a greater freedom of 
choice as to what they wish to do and how they wish to do it And I always got the impression from the 

Conservative Party that they were all for freedom of choice. So it is in that context that I have to 

chuckle when they present a position of total opposition to having the State provide a more flexible 

approach of land tenure to the farmers of th is province or for that matter to any particular group,  that 

somehow they are tied so ideolog ical ly to the concept that only ownersh ip is the way through wh ich 

one can control poverty. 
You know I don't be l ieve that many people in Winnipeg look upon that, especial ly in the business 

community, as a means of control l ing property because most - wel l ,  I wou ld hazard a guess that a 

very h igh percentage - of commercial properties are on a lease basis. And if you are to compare the 

business commun ity of Winnipeg with anyth ing,  it cou ld be compared with the farmer who is also a 

businessman and who also has the same problems in the l im itation of capital supply, the constraint of 

having a shortage money. He may have enough money for the purchase of bui ld ings and equipment 

and so on,  but not necessari ly enough money to be able to buy land at very high costs, very high 

mortgage interest rates and so on. So this particular program really is a means of getting around one 

of the greatest handicaps that young people have if they wish to enter into the agricultura l  industry, 
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and that is the capital f inancing that is so d ifficult to raise. 
And it is very wel l to suggest that wel l ,  we would simply al low them to borrow money at a 

d iscounted rate as was the case when they were the government, M r. Chairman. The youngsters 
were able to borrow money at an interest rate of two percentage points below the standard rates, but 
that didn't mean that it accommodated every sincere, innovative ind ividual who wanted to get into the 
industry. All it meant was that if someone was a lready in the industry or had some assets, that they 
cou ld borrow more money to get into it in  a bigger way. But certainly it meant that they had to be 
somewhat establ ished with some percentage of fixed assets that they owned at the time, they could 
put up as collateral .  And that was a very serious bar, and sti l l  is a very serious bar, to many young 
people who want to g raduate from their parents' farm or graduate from the agricu ltural col lege or 
whatever and undertake an enterprise of their own . 

So this particular program does provide an option.  It gives the young person an opportunity to get 
started without undertaking a horrendous mortgage. If you are talking about mortgage and 
agriculture today, you are talk ing not in  tens of thousands but you are talking in terms of hundreds of 
thousands of dol lars depending on the nature of the enterprise, but certain ly a hundred thousand 
dol lars today is not a g reat deal of money if you are talk ing about land costs, machinery costs, 
bui ld ing costs and so on .  

And so it is necessary for some other option or approach to make it possible for  those people that 
are unable to raise that kind of money to sti l l  get i nto the industry. So it is a greater freedom of choice 
that we are talking about and noth ing more. And it seems that the last three or four years should have 
been a good example with the rising land values, a good example of how d ifficult it is for ind ividuals to 
compete in the marketplace. Not only is it d ifficult to raise mortgage money, but it became 
impossible, based on the inflationary land values of the last three or fou r  years. There is just no way in 
which one can log ically compete with the m arket as it is in  the last two or three years, as i t  is today, 
with land prices going up to $400, $500, $600 an acre. The people who are buying the land are not at 
all dependent on a return on that investment through the rentals or whatever arrangement they make 
after they have purchased it in so far as its continued operation is concerned. So when you are into 
that k ind of competition,  it demonstrates most fu l ly that there is a need for another approach. 

It also has to be pointed out that not everyone wishes to lock a l l  of their profits annual ly back into 
land values through their mortgage payments, that they wou ld prefer to do other th ings with their 
money and that is another freedom of choice that they do have under this arrangement. 

I wou ld suggest to members opposite that I don't believe for one moment, Mr. Speaker, that they 
do not recogn ize the problem that I have cited but that really they hope to capture some benefit in  the 
d iscussions on the theory that somehow th is program has more to do with ideological questions than 
it has to do with the assistance to young farmers and existing farmers who need more land but can't 
afford to buy it, to get these lands through a lease arrangement. I real ly bel ieve that that is their 
motivation rather than real opposition to another measure through which young people can become 
agricu ltural ists in this province. 

I know that if you look at the statistics of the people who are on the program, you wi l l  find, Mr. 
Speaker, that about 40 percent of the appl icants are new people, young people. The other 60 percent 
are wel l-estab l ished farmers, about 50 percent of which are people who want to expand their 
operations and who are unable to do so because of f inancial constraints. And about 10 percent are 
financial crisis cases where that is the only way in which they cou ld sustain themselves in business. 
For whatever reasons, they have entered into a period of financial d ifficulty and I don't think I have to 
explain that to anyone on that side because anyone involved in any business, and in particular the 
agriculture industry, would know what I am talk ing about when they talk about getting into very 
d ifficu lt financial straights. -( lnterjection)-

Wel l ,  Mr .  Speaker, I am not at a l l  going to be distracted. I wanted to make the point that the 
members opposite - a good number of them are farmers in their own right, fai rly substantial 
operators, not all of whom own their own land, Mr. Speaker, some of whom wish to lease land from 
the State and have done so for a long, long t ime - that they know what I am talk ing about when I tal k  
about the financial d ifficulties that farm people get into from to time to time. And it i s  not because it i s  
entirely their fau lt, i t  i s  partly their fau lt but not entirely. With respect to commodities which we 
largely consume in this province, I wou ld say it is  entirely their fau lt if they haven't put their market in 
order in  such a way that they can realize a return on investment and labour. But with a good 
percentage or the bu lk  of our production in this province, we are net exporters. We ship most of our 
products either overseas or to other provinces and to that extent these people are constrained from 
tidying up their  market situation in such a way that they could realize a reasonable return. So I can't 
fau lt that particu lar group for not having done a job in management of market production and 
marketing, that perhaps they are good m anagers in production but they are handicapped in the 
marketplace. Those things can only be accompl ished at a national level and therefore it takes some 
in itiative on the part of people in the provinces, the provincial governments, and the Government of 
Canada. 
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But in any event, we have to face the reality, and that is that we have al l  of these weaknesses in our  
present system .  We have to recogn ize the fact that if the Russians and the Chinese don't buy wheat 
for a year or two, that we face bankruptcy on the prairies un less we can assume that they wi l l  be back 
in the market in a very short period of time. You know if you go back in the last twenty years, it has 
been basical ly sales to that part of the world that have really kept the prairies going,  and certain ly in 
the last ten years. We are very fortunate that we are able to sel l to that large a market, g iven the fact 
that we are a nation of only twenty-some-odd mi l l ion people and that we produce much more. We 
have a land base much g reater than what is requi red for our own consumption and so we have to have 
an export market and that is true for most commodities. 

So it is important that there be flexibi l ity in  the area of land tenure so that people with abi l ity can 
participate in the industry as wel l  as those that have the money with wh ich to purchase land and to set 
up a farmstead. I th ink it is wrong in principle for any government to rely total ly on the marketplace as 
a means of access to land for whatever purpose. I real ly th ink that is wrong, Mr .  Speaker. I th ink that 
as Canadian citizens everyone should have a right to some portion of our land mass, a right in  order 
that they can achieve in the same way that anyone else wou ld wish to ach ieve, whether they have 
money or whether they wou ld not have any money. And if we are going to continue on a basis that 
only people with money shall  have property rights, then I am afraid , Mr. Speaker, that we wi l l  be back 
to where our forefathers were when they left feudal Eu rope where they had a landless peasantry by 
and large, tenant farmers, huge land lords, which I am sure the parents of some members opposite 
had to escape from,  as did mine. That is not the kind of thing that I wou ld want to see in th is country. 

I know that the Member for Lakeside would l i ke to suggest to me that, "Wel l ,  but then we have 
tenants of the State because after all the State is i nvolved in a land-lease program and that is bad ." 
Wel l ,  I wou ld l ike to put the argument to h im that that is not bad because the State is controlled by the 
people and the people and the State should be the same th ing.  And whenever you elect a 
government, Mr. Speaker, it is obvious tht that you reflect the majority opinion of the people. So it 
doesn't matter who it is in government, M r. Speaker, we have the protection that every four  years or 
so we refer ou rse lves back to the electorate and they make a decision. And so you cannot equate the 
land tenure arrangement under government land lease here with that of feudal Europe, Mr. Speaker. 
That is not an analogous situation whatsoever. There you had a situation where the land lords and the 
State were one and the same, v irtually, the landlords controlled the government of the day; the 
peasants d idn 't have the franchise, had no input i nto the government, and were slaves of the 
land lords. Every time their productivity went up, the rents went up, and every time the markets went 
up, the rents went up and so on. And one can go back to the I rish potato famine to i l l ustrate that point. 
So it is always good to look at it  in proper perspective, Mr. Speaker. It is wrong to draw an analogy 
between feudal Europe and an option program here in this province where it is designed to faci l itate 
people, people who are not able to raise the amount of capital that wou ld be requi red if they were to 
go through the normal market channels in order to enter into the agricultural industry. 

Now the Member for Morris got somewhat u pset about a reference that the Attorney-General 
made to the TED report and I don't know what reference it was but I suspect it had to do with the fact 
that the Conservative government of the 1 960s i n  this province took the position that the best way to 
handle the problems of rural Man itoba to do noth ing ' to not act as a as a catalyst to make things 
happen in rural Man itoba and the Member for Morris suggested that if we refer to the TED report then 
he would l i ke to refer to the Guidel ines of the Seventies report and use them in the same way. That is 
not just possible, M r. Speaker, because it was obvious through the admin istration of that government 
that in  fact they were fol lowing the principles of the TED report all along . The Member for Morris even 
admitted it when he said, "Wel l  how do you put together a report?" You look at what happened and 
you project what wi l l  happen and you have the answer. Wel l ,  Mr. Speaker, that's true. That's true if 
you are not prepared to intervene, to intercede in a g iven situation and that is the approach of the 
Conservative party, whatever comes, the state wi l l  not play a ro le. They are not going to be involved 
or concerned about the welfare of huge blocks of people in society. 

The Guidel ines of the Seventies talk  about the need for giving rural people an opportun ity to make 
a better cho ice, it is referred to as the stay option.  You can look at a l l  of the programs, a number of 
programs, and not a l l  of the guidel ines have been accepted as pol icy but a good number of them have 
or conform very much with that phi losophy, and that is that whenever you look at the thrust of the 
government with respect to rural Man itoba, you find that consistently in every move, there is a 
phi losophy of creating greater opportun ities in order that people can decide for themselves that they 
wish to remain with in the ru ral setting, rural l ifestyle as opposed to being forced by economic 
circumstances to move into the cities or whatever, out of the province completely. You know, nursing 
homes are good examples of that; senior citizen homes are good examples of that; and a whole host 
of other things that were done over the last several years in the spirit of the stay-option principle 
which is the gu id ing principle of the Gu idel i nes for the Seventies. One cou ld not say that about the 
Conservative government prior. One can only say and conclude, and qu ite honestly, Mr. Speaker, 
that the TED report was a reflection of their ongoing policy and that is do noth ing and the 
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marketplace wi l l  make a l l  of the decisions and those people that are squeezed out of the system and 
depopulate the rural part of this province w i l l  be squeezed out by the normal set of c i rcumstances. To 
them, normal means that someone in the m arketplace, some set of c ircumstances . . .  

MR. SPEAKER: Order p lease. 
MR. USKIW: . . .  a set of c ircumstances in the marketplace is the gu idel ine. Now, that is a very 

lazy approach,  M r. Speaker, and it typifies a Conservative admin istration . It is a very lazy approach.  I 
leave that to the pub l ic to judge as to whether they prefer that lazy approach of a government that 
wishes to do noth ing to intercede on behalf of the people when they have d ifficu lties, as opposed to a 
government that wishes to intercede in order to al leviate and assist. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Lakeside. 
MR. ENNS: Mr.  Speaker, l istening to the Honourable M in ister of Agriculture, he makes it that 

m uch easier for a l l  of us to understand why i n  one case 77 percent of the constituencies that he is 
most d i rectly involved in, and people he has paid a great deal of attention to, i n  terms of dol lars and 
has had a tremendous cam paign and program involved in trying to influence their  decision-making 
in this last l ittle while, why the farm community understands the Min ister as well  as they do. Mr. 
Speaker, the farm community wi l l  also understand the M in ister very wel l with respect to his 
maneuverings, h is actions, h is adoptions with respect to the land-lease program. Mr. Speaker, i t  
happens to be because they understand h im better than he wou ld l ike to th ink that they do. They 
understand the nature of the party that he represents, and they believe it. They believe that when he 
and his party in itial ly d rew up some of the tenets of their faith that all matters involved with the 
production of goods and services should belong to all the people all the time, when that was drawn up 
in the Regina Man ifesto in 1934, reaffirmed when the NOP was formed , reaffirmed in this last 
convention ,  then they understand that. They understand, Mr. Speaker, that this M inister does not 
believe in any private ownership of land, anywhere in the province. They also understand the 
direction that their First Min ister gave them at their f i rst convention after forming government, that it 
is necessary to bend those princip les from time to time. And ,  Sir ,  what we are seeing here is a 
necessity to make that bend as we approach election year. 

Mr. Speaker, when the M inister muses, and has ,  in fact, mused aloud to the media that he bel ieves, 
for instance, that a l l  land should be returned to the Crown at a dol lar an acre' that a l l  land should be 
treated as a publ ic uti l ity - Mr. Speaker, as a matter of fact, most people in th is world l ive under 
systems l i ke that. So let's debate that if we want to. I am also prepared to acknowledge, Mr. Speaker, 
that these members opposite would l i ke to perpetuate themselves in office, and are prepared to wait, 
are prepared to go slowly and much more slowly, in  fact even deviate off the path for awh i le as we 
approach election time. And that real ly is what we are doing with respect to the land-lease program at 
this time. The amusing th ing,  Mr. Speaker, is  that whi le we were accused of the scare tactics, of 
misrepresenting the original land-lease program as it stood , this M in ister, this government, now sees 
fit, now sees need to change that program , underl in ing the very things that, in fact, we suggested to 
the people, to the farming committee in 1973. The very th ing .  And with what degree of cynicism, Mr. 
Speaker, with what degree of cynicism! It takes no exaggeration on my part, to indicate to the people 
of Man itoba that the Attorney-General simply does not bel ieve in private ownership of land. I know 
that that is true for the M inister of Agricu lture; I know that is  true for the Member for St. Matthews; I 
know that is true for the member of - and I can cou ld name a large number. Whether or not, Sir ,  that 
they wi l l  col lectively stand up and make that part of a platform particu larly an election p latform , that 
of course is another issue. In fact, I they are they are prepared to do demonstrating qu ite the 
opposite. But, S i r, that happens to be the truth, or else they are not social ists. They have become very 
proud of being social ists. 

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. The hour being 5:30, the honourable gentlemen wi l l  have an 
opportun ity to carry on the next time we get to Private Members' Hour. I am now leaving the Chair and 
the House wi l l  reconvene at 8:00 P.M. in  Comm ittee of Supply with the Deputy Speaker in the Chair. 
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